
     

 
Notice of a public meeting of 
 

Corporate Services, Climate Change and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 

 
To: Councillors Fenton (Chair), Merrett (Vice-Chair), Ayre, 

Baxter, J Burton, Healey, Kelly, D Myers, Rowley, Steels-
Walshaw, K Taylor, Waller and Widdowson 
 

Date: Monday, 13 May 2024 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: West Offices - Station Rise, York YO1 6GA 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest   (Pages 1 - 2) 
 At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are 

asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other 
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on this 
agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the 
Register of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of the 
interest.  
 
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.  
 
[Please see the attached sheet for further guidance for Members.] 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 6) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 22 April 

2024. 
 



 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak 
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.  
Please note that our registration deadlines are set as 2 
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the 
management of public participation at our meetings. The 
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Thursday, 
9 May 2024. 
 
To register to speak please visit 
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online 
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration 
form or the meeting, please contact Democratic Services. 
Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.  
 
Webcasting of Public Meetings  
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will 
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have 
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on 
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.  
During coronavirus, we made some changes to how we ran 
council meetings, including facilitating remote participation by 
public speakers. See our updates 
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on 
meetings and decisions.  
 

4. The Ten-Year Strategies: a stock take   (Pages 7 - 34) 
 This report provides an update on the 10-Year Strategies and how 

they underpin the ambitions of the council, relate to the Council 
Plan and informs council priorities.  
 

5. Monitoring and Tracking of Approved Council 
Motions   

(Pages 35 - 74) 

 This report provides information on approved Council motions since 
November 2023, when this Committee last considered an update.   
 

6. Schedule of Petitions   (Pages 75 - 104) 
 Members are invited to scrutinise the updated schedule of petitions 

and to consider any next steps such as may be appropriate. 
 
 



 

7. Work Plan   (Pages 105 - 106) 
 To consider the current scrutiny overview work plan and the potential 

business of the committee for the upcoming municipal year 2024/25. 
 

8. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer: 
Jane Meller 
 
Contact details: 

 Telephone: (01904 555209) 

 Email: jane.meller@york.gov.uk  
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 
 

mailto:jane.meller@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Declarations of Interest – guidance for Members 
 
(1) Members must consider their interests, and act according to the 

following: 
 

Type of Interest You must 

Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests 

Disclose the interest, not participate 
in the discussion or vote, and leave 
the meeting unless you have a 
dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

Disclose the interest; speak on the 
item only if the public are also 
allowed to speak, but otherwise not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

Disclose the interest; remain in the 
meeting, participate and vote unless 
the matter affects the financial 
interest or well-being: 

(a) to a greater extent than it affects 
the financial interest or well-being of 
a majority of inhabitants of the 
affected ward; and 

(b) a reasonable member of the 
public knowing all the facts would 
believe that it would affect your view 
of the wider public interest. 

In which case, speak on the item 
only if the public are also allowed to 
speak, but otherwise do not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

 
(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or 

their spouse/partner. 
 

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must 
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to 
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal 
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992. 

 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Corporate Services, Climate Change and 
Scrutiny Management Committee 

Date 22 April 2024 

Present Councillors Fenton (Chair), Merrett (Vice-
Chair), Ayre, Baxter, J Burton, Healey (from 
5:34pm), Steels-Walshaw, K Taylor, Waller, 
Widdowson and Steward (Substitute for Cllr 
Rowley) 

Apologies Councillors Rowley, Kelly and D Myers 

 

44. Declarations of Interest (5:33pm)  
 

Members were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or 
other registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on the 
agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the Register of 
Interests.  
 
Cllr Merrett noted, in relation to Item 5, Changes in Procurement 
Legislation, that he was a Management Committee Member of the 
Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation. 

 
 
45. Minutes (5:34pm)  
 

Resolved: That the minutes of the last meeting held on 18 March 2024 
were approved as a correct record. 

 
 
46. Public Participation (5:35pm)  
 

It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at the meeting 
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
Geoff Beacon, a resident, acknowledged the fleet of electric buses but 
questioned if becoming carbon neutral by 2030 was an achievable aim for 
York or York Council.  He raised concerns regarding large consumer areas, 
which he considered to be big polluters.  

 
 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



47. Greenhouse Gas Accounting and Scope 3 Emissions 
(5:39pm)  
 

The Assistant Director for Policy and Strategy, together with the Head of 
Carbon Reduction, introduced the report and outlined the council’s 
approach to Greenhouse Gas Accounting and Scope 3 Emissions. 
 
Following the presentation, Members asked questions which covered the 
capital cost of implementing the Heat Decarbonisation Plans (HDPs), how 
the council’s housing stock was being handled in relation to heating and net 
zero, the workload of the carbon reduction team, influencing resident’s 
behaviour, working with other organisations to effect change, accounting 
for building materials, the quality of the information provided, meeting the 
council’s carbon neutral target and funding opportunities. 
 
During the discussion, officers reported that: 

 A written response would be provided to the committee to confirm the 
current level of funding available for the cost of implementing the 
HDPs. 

 It was not possible to access energy consumption figures for the 
council’s housing stock. 

 The carbon reduction team’s main focus was on supporting other 
council teams towards council targets rather than compiling data. 

 Motivators to change people’s behaviour, such as financial 
incentives, had been proven to work better than the provision of 
information. 

 
The Joint Executive Member, Environment and Climate Emergency, 
responded to the discussion points that emerged during the meeting and 
confirmed the council’s commitment to the carbon reduction plans and the 
aim to be carbon neutral by 2030.  
 
Resolved:  

i. Officers to investigate a communications plan to 
highlight good practice and encourage behaviour 
change. 

ii. The Offsetting and Insetting strategy be brought to the 
Committee at a later date. 

 
Reason: To continue to monitor progress towards the Council 

ambition of net zero carbon by 2030. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



48. Changes in Procurement Legislation (6:42pm)  
 

The Head of Procurement, alongside the Chief Finance Officer, presented 
a report on the changes in procurement legislation and how these would 
impact on procurement procedures across the council.  It was noted that 
the ‘go live’ date for the legislation had been put back to 28 October 2024. 
 
Officers responded to a number of questions from Members covering the 
impact of the new legislation on sustainability, the use of the YO postcode 
when monitoring spending, the capacity of the procurement team, in-house 
training, Contract Procedure Rules (CPR), the procurement process rules, 
procedures and monitoring, IT management/monitoring systems, social 
value policy and credit values. 
 
It was reported that: 

 An upskill in the market was required to meet sustainability 
requirements. 

 Two procurement managers were being recruited, which would result 
in a net gain of one FTE, this would be reviewed once the new 
regulations were in place. 

 The parameters used to collate data on council spend could be 
further refined. 

 There were currently no proposed changes to the council’s policy 
regarding the waiving of CPR, this would be reviewed post the new 
regulations. 

 Officers would check the total of social value credits accrued last 
financial year and report back to the Committee. 

 There was no live exercise to find a contract management system. 

 A social value policy was not yet in place within Procurement. 

 The Procurement team’s compliance officer monitored contracts 
valued at less than £5k. 

 
 
Resolved:   
 

i. That the report be noted 
ii. The social value policy would be brought back to the 

committee once drafted 
iii. The value of the social credits from the last financial 

year be circulated to the Committee. 
 

Reason:  To keep the Committee updated on procurement 
activity 

 
 

Page 5



49. Work Plan (7:16pm)  
 

Members considered the Scrutiny work plan for the four scrutiny 
committees. 
 
Resolved:  That the work plan be noted. 
 
Reason: To ensure an overview of the scrutiny work programme. 

 
 
 
 
 

Cllr S Fenton,  Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.32 pm and finished at 7.19 pm]. 

Page 6



 

 

  
 

   

 
Corporate Services, Climate Change and 
Scrutiny Management Committee  
 

13 May 2024 

Report of the Assistant Director Policy and Strategy  
Leader, Executive Member for Policy, Strategy, Partnerships 
 

The Ten-Year Strategies: a stock take  

Summary 

1. In December 2022 the council adopted the 10-Year Strategy and 
Policy Framework which is comprised of three interdependent 10-
year strategies, together with a 10-Year City Plan co-designed by 
city partners. 

2. The 10-year strategies were informed by existing or emerging 
national and local policies and set the foundation for the council’s 
Strategy and Policy Framework for the decade ahead.   

3. In tandem, city partners worked with the council to develop a 10-
Year Plan that drew on the ambition set by the 10-Year Strategies 
to agree York 2032 - a vision and shared priorities for the city. 

4. This report provides an update about how the 10-Year Strategies 
underpin the ambitions of the council, relate to the Council Plan and 
informs our priorities as we work with partners to deliver for the city. 

Background 

5. The development of the 10-Year Strategies was informed by 
extensive consultation with residents, stakeholders, businesses and 
partners (both locally and regionally), and collating and analysing 
supporting technical evidence.  The 10-Year Plan was built on this 
evidence base and developed through co-design workshops with 
city partners.  The Strategy and Policy Framework sought to 
demonstrate how these strategies inform future strategy and policy 
development. 

Page 7 Agenda Item 4



 

6. The 10-Year Strategies were approved by Executive in November 
2022 (Climate Change and following approval at the Economic 
Partnership, Economy) and Executive in December 2022 (Joint 
Health and Wellbeing) following approval from the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 

7. In December 2022, the 10-Year Plan (known as York 2032), 10-
Year Strategies covering economy, health and climate, and 
Strategy and Policy Framework were all adopted by Full Council on 
behalf of the city.    

8. The Constitution (Appendix 1) sets out the policy framework and 
notes that the 10 Year City Plan, Climate Strategy and Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy each are required to be presented to Full 
Council for adoption.  Due to their interdependency with the 
economy, the Economic Strategy was presented to Council at the 
same time.   

9. Known as York 2032 (www.york2032.co.uk) , the 10-Year Plan’s 
foundations are the ambitions and goals set out in the three 10-
Year strategies: 

 1Climate Change Strategy 2022-2032 

 2Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2022-2032  

 3Economic Strategy 2022-2032 
 

10. These three 10-Year Strategies are based on a sustainable 
development approach as collectively recognise and reflect the 
interdependencies between the environment (climate), health and 
wellbeing and the economy.  They are by the city for the city, with 
the council, city partners, businesses and stakeholders across the 
city all contributing to their successful delivery. 

11. Other city-wide strategies which have been developed through 
partnership - 

and either informed the ambitions set in these three strategies and 
the vision and priorities set by the 10-Year Plan:  

 4Skills Strategy 2020-2030 – developed by the Skills Board 

                                            
1 York Climate Change Strategy 2022-2032 
2 York Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
3 York Economic Strategy 2022-2032 
4 York Ten Year Skills Strategy 

Page 8

http://www.york2032.co.uk/
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8948/york-climate-change-strategy-2022-to-2032
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s163774/Annex%20Di%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Strategy%202022-32.pdf
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8949/york-economic-strategy-2022-to-2032
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8577/york-s-ten-year-skills-plan


 

 5Cultural Strategy 2020-2025 – developed by Make It York in 
consultation with the cultural sector 
 

or reflect the 10-Year Plan (York 2032) and 10-Year Strategies 
adopted by Council in December 2022: 

 

 6Tourism Strategy: A vision for York 2032– developed by the 
Tourist Advisory Board and adopted by Council in March 
2024 

 The emerging Local Transport Strategy aims to reduce traffic 
emissions by 71%, a target set by the Climate Change 
Strategy  

 

The Council Plan 

12. The 10-Year Strategies form the basis of all council strategy and 
policy development through the council’s adherence to the Strategy 
and Policy Framework (see Annex A).   

13. The Council Plan 2023-2027 vision and priorities map to the York 
2032 vision and priorities, with the Council Plan aiming to establish 
the conditions that would enable successful delivery of the ambition 
set in York 2032. 

14. The council plan by its nature covers a four-year administrative 
term, and so takes a staged approach to deliver the ambitions set 
in York 2032.  There will be two more council plans before 2032 
covering 2027-2031, and 2031–2035. The below sets out how the 
current Council Plan maps to York 2032.

                                            
5 makeityork.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Yorks-Creative-Future-York-Culture-Strategy-2020-
2025.pdf 
6 Annex A York Tourism Strategy.pdf   

Page 9

https://www.makeityork.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Yorks-Creative-Future-York-Culture-Strategy-2020-2025.pdf
https://www.makeityork.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Yorks-Creative-Future-York-Culture-Strategy-2020-2025.pdf
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s173291/Annex%20A%20York%20Tourism%20Strategy.pdf


 

 York 2032 (2022-2032) Council Plan 2023-2027 

Vision York will be a vibrant, prosperous, welcoming and 
sustainable city, where everyone can share and 
take pride in its success 

Over the next four years, the council will establish the 
conditions that would make the city of York a healthier, 
fairer, more affordable, more sustainable and more 
accessible place, where everyone feels valued 

Priorities  Health and Wellbeing 

All York residents (young, old and future residents) 
will enjoy happier, healthier, longer lives, proud of 
their city and living in homes that meet their needs, 
able to actively participant in their communities, with 
access to the right support at the right time. 

Health and wellbeing 

A health generating city, for children and adults 

 

Education and Skills 

All ages will have access to learning throughout their 
lives to equip them with the skills to succeed 
commercially and socially, locally and nationally. 

Education and skills 

High quality skills and learning for all 

Economic Growth 

York's economy will be vibrant and inclusive with 
businesses supported to grow and prosper and talent 
nurtured, retained and supported. Our economy will 
be developed to be well balanced with a mix of 
different sectors providing opportunities for young 
and old. 

Economy and good employment 

A fair, thriving, green economy for all 

 Transport 

York's transport networks will be inclusive and 

Transport  

P
age 10



 

sustainable, connecting neighbourhoods and 
communities.  -  To be updated following adoption of 
the Local Transport Strategy 

Sustainable accessible transport for all 

Sustainability 

York will be carbon neutral and contribute to the 
regional ambition to be carbon negative, with iconic 
green spaces to enjoy today and the environment 
protected for future generations to enjoy. 

 

Sustainability  

Cutting carbon, enhancing the environment for our 
future 

Housing was an action in the 10-Year Plan rather 
than priority 

Housing:  

Increasing the supply of affordable housing 

Targets Set by the 10-Year Strategies, with the Council Plan contributing towards these.   

The Council Plan has set four core commitments (outcomes) which respond to aspects of York 2032 together 
with helping establish the conditions that contributes to successfully delivery of the York 2032 vision and 
priorities. 

Strategic framework – York 2032 

 

  

P
age 11

https://www.york2032.co.uk/york-2032/strategic-framework-1


 

15. By introducing the four core commitments (EACH - Equalities, 
Affordability, Climate and Health) and understanding the impact of 
these in council decisions, there is a clear line of sight to York 
2032.  In addition, EACH helps identify areas to focus on to deliver 
the vision set out in York 2032. 

16. The below demonstrates how the four core commitments contribute 
to delivery of the 10-Year Strategies and 10-Year Plan vision: 

Equalities and Human Rights The York 2032 vision sets an 
ambition that everyone can share and take pride in the city’s 
success. The Council Plan (2023-2027) vision takes a step towards 
this by setting an expectation that the council will establish the 
conditions of a fairer, more accessible place where everyone feels 
valued.   
 
Affordability City partners described actions in the 10-Year Plan 
which focuses on affordable housing and reducing poverty.  The 
10-Year Strategies have objectives that focus on inclusive growth 
(economy), ensuring climate action doesn’t impact those who can 
least afford it (climate change) or works at a system level to 
address the impact of deprivation (Joint Health and Wellbeing). 
 
Climate Change One of the 10-Year strategies is Climate Change, 
and climate and environment is one of the four core commitments 
in the Council Plan.  It is a key element in the decision reports 
allowing Executive to understand implications of proposed 
decisions on the climate and environment. 
 
Health inequalities The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy takes 
an all age / life stages approach to health and wellbeing with a 
focus on reducing health inequalities.  It is a key element in the 
decision reports allowing Executive to the health implications of 
proposed decisions on health and wellbeing. 

 
Progress 

17. Progress to deliver the ambitions set out in York 2032, informed by 
the 10-Year Strategies, is underway.  Council actions are reported 
through the performance and management framework, and at 
relevant scrutiny committees.  City partner actions are delivered 
outside of council governance. 

18. The below lists notable highlights of council projects delivering the 
ambitions for each of the 10-Year strategies.  These projects have 

Page 12



 

been selected to demonstrate the interdependent relationship 
between the three strategies: 

19. Climate Change Strategy highlights: 

Following adoption of the Climate Change Strategy 2022-2032, 
positive progress has been made towards the ambition for York to 
be a net zero carbon city, with area-wide emissions reducing by 
12%. We have also strengthened our commitment to climate 
change adaptation, with an ambition for York to be Climate Ready 
by 2030.  

 Almost £3m of funding has been secured from the Combined 
Authority’s Net Zero Fund. Development projects, including the 
Harewood Whin Green Energy Park, are investigating the 
potential for 75MW of new renewable energy generation across 
the city, which could save an estimated 40,000tCO2e/yr. Delivery 
projects are replacing street lighting and office lighting with high 
efficiency LEDs and replacing inefficient and expensive domestic 
heating solutions will low-carbon renewable systems.  

 The Retrofit One-Stop-Shop for York (ROSSY) project launched 
with £4m of funding from Innovate UK. Project partners are 
developing the physical and digital tools to offer a comprehensive 
support service for all households in York looking to retrofit their 
homes. It will also be looking at innovative financing and training 
solutions while showcasing two demonstrator homes in the city. 

 Progress is being made to enhance and protect our Natural 
Environment. York Community Woodland will open to the public 
in August, and the Green Streets project has planted an additional 
1,500 trees across the city, in partnership with the White Rose 
Forest, and two new micro-woodlands will be created in York 
using Coronation Heritage Funding. 

 Links across the city have been strengthened with the refresh of 
York Climate Commission. Over 100 individuals representing a 
broad cross-section of York’s business, public and third sectors 
are represented in the 8 working groups delivering impact and 
supporting the city’s climate change ambitions.  

 

20. Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy highlights: 

Page 13



 

The Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2022-2032 comprises six 
big ambitions and 10 big goals all focused towards achieving a vision 
that ‘In 2032 York will be healthier, and that health will be fairer’.  
The overarching goal to achieve this vision is to ‘reduce the gap in 
healthy life expectancy between the richest and poorest communities in 
York’ with the nine other goals of the strategy focused on specific areas 
that will enable this. Some of the key progress highlights reported are as 
follows: 
 
 Mental Health: Following completion of the Community Mental 

Health Hub prototype phase, a report was produced detailing the 
learning. The Current focus is on preparing for the upscaling of 
York’s Hub model.  Additionally, key activity has been focussed 
upon developing the York Joint Delivery Board (YJDB), which now 
oversees the Hub concept and delivery. The Board involves 
service leads with staff or teams involved in provision of Hub 
services.  Leads include York Council for Voluntary Services, York 
Mind, co-production lead, TEWV and CYC representation, and co-
chairs of the York Mental Health Partnership.   

 Smoking: A programme of work has commenced through the 
CYC Public Protection function which concentrates on illicit 
tobacco and enforcement of age-of-sale legislation. This includes 
the response to intel on illicit sale through raids on premises, and 
the use of test-purchasing. In addition, a responsible retailer 
scheme has commenced with vaping shops in York, aimed at 
reducing the sale of vapes to under 18 through responsible 
marketing, age checks and the promotion of vapes as quit 
devices, not as recreational devices aimed at young people. 

 Alcohol: The Lower My Drinking was launched in August 2022, 
and has seen over 7000 York residents complete the online quiz, 
with over 100 downloading the associated app. A communications 
campaign around reducing drinking levels has also been 
implemented, led by CYC. A significant proportion (38%) of people 
completing the quiz are drinking at above low risk but not possibly 
dependent levels, and 10% at possible dependence levels, which 
is in line with the intended audience for the digital tool as a 
population-level intervention designed to reduce mean ethanol 
consumption in York, but also a tool that increases self-referrals 
into specialist treatment where relevant.  

 Healthy Weight: we have continued to support adult residents to 
achieve a healthy weight through the York Weight Management 
pathway. Additionally, the HENRY programme continues to be 

Page 14



 

delivered to families from children’s centres across York, with 5 
programmes being delivered in 2023. The programme is aimed at 
parents and carers of those aged 0-5, with childcare provided at 
the weekly sessions to enable more families to access the 
programme. It delivers practical support around increasing self-
esteem and emotional wellbeing, so children start school ready to 
learn, setting and achieving goals, active play ideas and getting 
active as a family, alongside guidance on diet, nutrition and oral 
health.   

 Reducing Health Inequalities: Some of our communities in York 
experience radically poorer health outcomes than others. Sixty 
three percent of people with learning disabilities die before 
reaching the age of 65, compared to 15 percent in the general 
population, and in York you are four times more likely to die before 
the age of 75 if you have a severe mental illness. There is good 
evidence that health inequalities can arise through geographic 
variances in health between e.g. less and more deprived areas, 
through demographic variances in health e.g. across protected 
characteristics such as age, disability, gender, but can also affect 
specific groups within society who typically experience 
marginalisation – sometimes termed ‘inclusion health’ groups. 
Examples of these include people who are homeless or sleeping 
rough, those from an ethnic minority or a marginalised group, 
people living with substance misuse disorder, and migrants, 
refugees and asylum seekers.  

The Director of Public Health and NHS Place Director for York 
have a delegated budget from the ICB Health Inequalities fund of 
around £270k per year to tackle health inequalities in our city. 
These monies have been allocated to schemes that focus on 
maternal and child nutrition; asthma friendly schools; York Brain 
Health Café; mental health related school absence, Ways to 
Wellbeing small grants programme, York Health Mela; GP 
outreach at the Women’s Centre, wellbeing activities for asylum 
seekers and refugees; Raise York Family Hubs, Peasholme 
homeless clinics and the provision of Citizen Advice in GP 
surgeries. 

          For a more detailed look at the above please refer to the HWBB 
reports contained in the agendas for the September 2023, 
November 2023, January 2024 and March 2024 agendas 
available here 

21. Economic Strategy highlights 

Page 15

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=763


 

Year 1 highlights from the Economic Strategy were reported to the 
Economy, Place, Access, and Transport Policy and Scrutiny 
Committee in November 20237.  Highlights were reported against 
each of the five key themes in the strategy document as follows:  

 For the ‘York as a global city’ theme, CYC has a reinvigorated 
inward investment team with the appointment in 2023 of a Head of 
Inward Investment & Business Growth with the team adopting a 
new strategic approach to growing CYC priority sectors of Rail, 
Tech and Media Arts, Bio Economy and Business and 
Professional services. A new tourism strategy adopted by the 
Council on behalf of the city, the UNESCO City of Media Arts 
status has been reenergised and York’s key developments, such 
as York Central, are progressing well with partnerships being built 
to maximise the economic benefit to the City.  A task and finish 
group has been formed by the York Economic Partnership to 
prioritise city actions against this theme for implementation in 
2024/25 

 For the ‘greener economy’ theme, CYC has invested in free 
decarbonisation support for businesses and in green skills with UK 
Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) funding, a Green Business 
Forum has been launched and a report that delineates the green 
economy in York has been delivered.  UKSPF is funding 75 
decarbonisation plans for local businesses, aiming to save 375 
tonnes CO2e by the end of the current financial year. Six plans 
have already been completed, saving an estimated 86.32 tonnes 
of CO2e.   

 For the ‘thriving workforce’ theme, the Local Skills Improvement 
Plan (LSIP) has been agreed, free skill bootcamps and mental 
health & wellbeing support has been provided and a supported 
employment forum had been launched. Working with partners, the 
Council has also launched a Construction Skills Initiative pilot, 
funded via UKSPF. 

 For the ‘thriving business’ theme, the Council has commissioned 
the delivery of a wide range of business support using UKSPF 
funding, including investment in free services to support start-ups, 
social enterprises, innovation and business growth.  Officers in the 
Business Growth team are focusing on growth sector work to 
support the above sectors as well as the retail and hospitality 
industry , including through work with partners and delivery of a 

                                            
7 https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s171444/Economic%20Strategy%20and%20Tourism%20Strategy%20Update.pdf 

Page 16



 

range of business support events.  A task and finish group has 
been formed by the York Economic Partnership to prioritise city 
actions against this theme for implementation in 2024/25. 

 For the ‘an economy powered by good business’ theme, the 
Council has co-produced a marketing plan to increase sign-ups of 
the Good Business Charter (GBC), established a York Community 
Fund, is supporting the Voluntary, Community & Social Enterprise 
(VCSE) sector with UKSPF funding and committed to Inclusive 
Equal Rights UK. A task and finish group has been formed by the 
York Economic Partnership to prioritise city actions against this 
theme for implementation in 2024/25, and will include an event to 
raise awareness of the Good Business Charter in Summer 2024. 
The task and finish group is working alongside the Human Rights 
and Equalities Board to develop a shared agenda between both 
bodies. 
 

Performance 

22. 10 Year Scorecards have been produced for each strategy to 
understand how the 10-year strategies are making a difference to 
the city and delivering the vision set out in the 10-Year Plan (York 
2032).   

23. The scorecards bring together different metrics that demonstrate 
progress against the targets set in the 10-Year Plan and current 
Council Plan, providing a clear base line to measure positive or 
negative trends.  Some of these metrics are only produced 2-3 
years late meaning the data will always be slightly out of date. 

24. A variety of indicators from the three individual 10-year strategies 
where part of a Council Plan, Partnership Board, or Scrutiny 
scorecards are already currently published on the Council’s Open 
Data platform. 
 

25. The 10-year Health and Wellbeing Strategy Scorecard through 
2023/24 has been discussed/published at the relevant committee 
and will be made available, quarterly, on the Council’s Open Data 
platform from June 2024. 
 

26. Indicators to support the Economic and Climate Change 10-year 
strategies have been discussed throughout the year. Going forward 
they will be made available, quarterly, on the Council’s Open Data 
platform from June 2024. 
 

Page 17



 

27. The 10 Year Scorecards are in annex: 

B – Climate Change 
C – Joint Health and Wellbeing  
D – Economic 

 

Governance 

28. Each of the 10-Year strategies sets out the principles by which they 
will be delivered. Governance arrangements for each of the 10-
Year strategies is appropriate to the partnerships and context in 
which they are delivered, and described below:  

a. York Climate Commission 

York Climate Commission is part of the national Place Based 
Climate Action Network and includes representation from over 
100 individuals. The Commission is organised into 8 working 
groups that are delivering impact and supporting the city’s 
climate change ambitions. 

b. Sustainability Leads Group 

The Sustainability Leads Group represents climate and 
sustainability leaders from city partner organisations. It is a 
forum for collaboration, co-ordination and sharing best practice. 
Activities have included alignment of reporting requirements 
and collaborative funding applications.  

c. Climate Change Programme Board 

The Climate Change Programme Board provides internal 
governance for the Council’s Climate Change Programme. The 
Board consists of Directors, Assistant Directors and Heads of 
Service from a range of Council service areas, providing a 
holistic overview of activity, risk and opportunities. The Board 
provides recommendations to the Council’s Corporate 
Management Team.  

29. Health and Wellbeing  

a. The York Health and Wellbeing Board 

An action plan has been developed to deliver the Joint Local 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the York Health and 
Wellbeing Board receives updates on delivery against at least 

Page 18



 

one of the 10 goals in its strategy and its associated actions at 
each of its meetings. To date we have received progress 
updates on Goals 1-7 in the strategy. The action plan covers 
the first 12-18 months of the strategy’s lifetime and will be 
reviewed sometime in 2025. 

b. York Place Board 

The York Health and Care Partnership (Place Board) has 
aligned its strategies and priorities to support the delivery of the 
Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The partnership 
provides an update report at every Health and Wellbeing Board 
meeting. Additionally, there are a number of system teams that 
support the delivery of priorities, for example, the York 
Population Health Hub which works across partners to oversee 
population health management, public health intelligence and 
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. The Place Board are 
finalising an annual report that sets out its achievements in 
2023/4 and this will be presented at the July 2024 meeting of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

30. Economy  

a. Economic Partnership  
 
The Economic Partnership8 meets twice a year, with the remit 
of overseeing delivery of the Economic Strategy.  It has no 
budget or decision-making powers but acts as an advisory 
board to the Council.  The partnership represents a broad 
spectrum of sectors and organisations and draws on the 
collective expertise of our city. It is chaired by the Executive 
Member for Economy and Transport.  At their last meeting, the 
Economic Partnership agreed to establish four Task and Finish 
Groups to focus proactively on delivery of a small number of 
prioritised activities in 2024/25 in relation to Global City, 
Thriving Businesses, Good Business and Our City Centre. 

b. Skills Board 
 
The York Skills and Employment Board, which developed the 
York Skills Plan, meets quarterly to review progress on 
implementation.  The Skills Board has a strong mix of 
employers, education and skills providers, business networks 
and public sector bodies, and seeks to promote the York Skills 

                                            
8 https://www.york2032.co.uk/working-together/partnerships#yep 

Page 19



 

Plan to the Combined Authority and Local Skills Improvement 
Partnership.  

c. Sector specific groups, for example Tourism Advisory Board 
 
York Tourism Advisory Board is a broad partnership of 
stakeholders in the visitor economy.  It has an independent 
chair (currently from York St John University Business School), 
and includes accommodation providers, visitor attractions, bars 
and restaurants, the Business Improvement District, City of 
York Council, North Yorkshire Council, tourism agencies and 
Visit York.  The TAB developed York’s Tourism Strategy and is 
now developing an implementation plan.  It will seek to 
influence the Local Visitor Economy Partnership and Combined 
Authority as they develop.  

What next 

31. The Strategy and Policy Framework (Annex A) sets out the 
timescales for when the 10-Year Strategies will be reviewed.  They 
will be reviewed and refreshed at the 5-year point (in 2027), to 
confirm the ambition is still appropriate (given policy and context 
changes), consider progress to date and assessing the impact of 
external factors.   

32. In the meantime, the 10-Year Plan will be updated to align with the 
below:  

a. The emerging Local Transport Strategy will inform the 
“transport” priority in the 10-Year Plan. 

b. The Council Plan 2023-2027 notes an action to refresh the 10-
Year Plan with city partners by considering the impact of the 
four core commitments. 

c. Exploring how to reduce poverty-based factors that lead to 
inequalities will inform the development of the 10-Year Poverty-
Free Strategy (a council plan action), to discuss with partners 
and consider the impact on the 10-Year Plan. 

Implications 

33. Financial The 10-Year strategies sets out the ambition for the 
city, there is no additional funding to deliver these, however, they 
provide a framework to influence future bids. 

Page 20



 

34. Human Resources (HR) There are no HR implications of the 
10-Year Strategies. 

35. Equalities is a core commitment of the council, informing 
delivery of projects that contribute to the York 2032 vision.  

36. Legal No implications. 

37. Crime and Disorder No implications. 

38. Information Technology (IT) No implications 

Recommendations 

39. The Committee are asked to note the information shared and to 
provide feedback to assist in shaping future development.  

Reasons for the Recommendation  

40. The Committee has responsibility for monitoring progress of 
relevant council priorities and advise on potential future 
priorities, together with advising Executive about the Strategy 
and Policy Framework and how it relates to council services.  

 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: 

Claire Foale 
Assistant Director Policy 
and Strategy 
claire.foale@york.gov.uk   
 
 
 

Bryn Roberts 
Director of Governance 
 

Report 
Approved 

Y 
Date 01 May 2024 

    

Specialist Implications Officer(s)  
Peter Roderick, Director of Public Health 
Shaun Gibbons, Head of Carbon Reduction 
Kathryn Daly, Head of City Development 
Simon Brereton, Head of Economic Development 
 
 

Wards Affected:   All Yes 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

Page 21

mailto:claire.foale@york.gov.uk


 

Background Papers: 
 
Constitution Appendix 1 Responsibility for Functions / Scheme of 
Delegation Appendix 1 - Scheme of Delegation.pdf (york.gov.uk) pg 7 

 
Council approve 10-Year Plan (York 2032) and Strategy and Policy 
Framework Agenda for Council on Thursday, 15 December 2022, 6.30 
pm (york.gov.uk) item 36 
 
Council approve Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2022-2032 Agenda for 
Council on Thursday, 15 December 2022, 6.30 pm (york.gov.uk) item 36 
 
Executive approve Economic Growth Strategy 2022-2032 and Climate 
Change Strategy 2022-2032 Agenda for Executive on Tuesday, 22 
November 2022, 5.30 pm (york.gov.uk) item 46 
 
CCCSM Scrutiny September 2023:  Resident Consultation and 
Engagement Agenda for Corporate Services, Climate Change and 
Scrutiny Management Committee on Monday, 25 September 2023, 5.30 
pm (york.gov.uk) item 5 
 
Council approve the Council Plan 2023-2027 Agenda for Council on 
Thursday, 21 September 2023, 6.30 pm (york.gov.uk) item 6 
One city for all, 2023 to 2027 – City of York Council 
 
Council adopts Tourism Strategy Agenda for Council on Thursday, 21 
March 2024, 6.30 pm (york.gov.uk) item 7 
 
Economy, Place, Access, and Transport Policy and Scrutiny Committee 
report on Economic Strategy and Tourism Strategy, 28 November 2023  
 
Economic Partnership Information on York 2032 Webpage (including 
link to Terms of Reference) 
 
 
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A  Strategy and Policy Framework 
Annex B  Climate Change 10 Year Strategy Scorecard 
Annex C  Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 10 Year Scorecard 
Annex D  Economy Strategy 10 Year Scorecard 

Page 22

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s173186/Appendix%201%20-%20Scheme%20of%20Delegation.pdf
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=331&MId=13697&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=331&MId=13697&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=331&MId=13697&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=331&MId=13697&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=733&MId=13292&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=733&MId=13292&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1064&MId=14281&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1064&MId=14281&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1064&MId=14281&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=331&MId=13926&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=331&MId=13926&Ver=4
https://www.york.gov.uk/council-plan-1/one-city-2023-2027
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=331&MId=13929&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=331&MId=13929&Ver=4
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s171444/Economic%20Strategy%20and%20Tourism%20Strategy%20Update.pdf
https://www.york2032.co.uk/working-together/partnerships#yep
https://www.york2032.co.uk/working-together/partnerships#yep


Annex A The Strategy and Policy Framework 
 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Collection 

Frequency
2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/24 Target Polarity DOT

OPC10
Corporate Water - Activity (tCO2e) - IN 

DEVELOPMENT
Quarterly - - - - - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Schools Electricity - Cost (£) Annual - - - £785,833.73 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Schools Electricity - Activity (kWh) Annual - - - 2,550,928.18 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Schools Electricity - CO2 (kg) Annual - - - 0 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Schools Gas Oil - Cost (£) Annual - - - £581,509.08 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Schools Gas Oil - CO2 (tonnes) Annual - - - 853.58 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Schools Gas - Activity (kWh) Annual - - - 4,676,118 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Schools Water - Cost (£) Discontinued - - - N/A - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Schools Water - Activity (m3) Discontinued - - - N/A - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Schools Water - Activity (tCO2e) - IN 

DEVLOPMENT
Quarterly - - - N/A - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Corporate Waste - Activity (t) Annual 366.6 222.04 342.68 305.56 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Corporate Waste - Energy from Waste (t) Annual 301.08 191.36 279.24 241.67 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Corporate Waste - Recycling (t) Annual 65.52 30.68 63.44 63.89 - -
Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

Corporate waste emissions (CO2e) - IN 

DEVELOPMENT
Quarterly - - - - - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

OPC12T Corporate Waste - Total  - CO2 (tonnes) (000's) Annual 7.81 4.73 7.3 6.51 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Buildings and Street Lighting -  Electricity - Cost 

(£)
Annual £1,864,741.8 £1,711,229.96 £1,500,452.23 £3,821,953.54 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

Buildings and Street Lighting - Electricity - 

Activity (kWh)
Annual 12,661,562.4 11,419,122 11,519,851.8 11,447,514 - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Buildings and Street Lighting -  Electricity - CO2 

(tonnes) (000's)
Annual 2,951.9 0 0 0 - -

Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

Buildings and Street Lighting - Gas Oil - Cost (£) Annual £359,310.98 £289,917.66 £305,907.59 £1,335,993.55 - -
Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

Buildings and Street Lighting - Gas Oil - Activity 

(kWh)
Annual 10,405,924 9,518,654 9,665,792 9,767,889 - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Buildings and Street Lighting - Gas Oil - CO2 (kg)  

 (000's)
Annual 1,920.41 1,713.36 1,764.4 1,753.31 - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

OPC06T
Buildings and Street Lighting - Total - CO2 (kg)  

(000's)
Annual 1,920.41 1,713.4 1,764.4 1,753.31 - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

OPC06T

A

Buildings and Street Lighting - Total - Activity 

(kWh)
Annual 23,067,486.4 20,937,776 21,185,643.8 21,215,403 - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

OPC06T

C
Buildings and Street Lighting - Total - Cost (£) Annual £2,224,052.78 £2,001,147.62 £1,806,359.82 £5,157,947.09 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

CAN029
% of ultra-low emission vehicles in CYC Fleet, 

operating in York (Electric and Hybrid)
Quarterly 5.80% 5.80% 1.66% 27.73% 31.00% (at Q3) -

Up is 

Good
▲

Green

CAN37
% of low emission vehicles in CYC Fleet, 

operating in York (Electric, Hybrid and Euro 6)
Quarterly - NC 30.00% 47.05% 51.00% (at Q3) -

Up is 

Good
▲

Green

OPC16 Fleet Transport - Diesel - CO2 (tonnes) (000's) Annual - 1,801.06 1,797 1,640 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

OPC17 Fleet Transport - Gas Oil - CO2 (tonnes) (000's) Annual - 103.11 30 29.01 - -
Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

OPC17T
Fleet Transport - CO2 (tonnes) (Diesel and 

gasoil) (000's)
Annual - 1,904 1,827 1,669.01 - -

Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

OPC20D Car Club - Diesel - CO2e (000's) Annual 0.71 0.2 1 2.21 - -
Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

OPC20D

D
Car Club - Diesel - Miles Annual 2,637 749 3,775 8,050 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

OPC20E Car Club - Electric - CO2e (000's) Annual 0.22 0.02 0.2 0.47 - -
Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

OPC20E

D
Car Club - Electric - Miles Annual 2,374 201 2,404 5,669 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

OPC20H Car Club - Hybrid - CO2e (000's) Annual 11.04 2.32 3.2 8.28 - -
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

0
5

. C
o

u
n

c
il E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 - F

le
e

t
0

6
. C

o
u

n
c
il E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 - C

a
r C

lu
b

0
3

. C
o

u
n

c
il E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 - 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 W
a

s
te

OPC12

0
4

. C
o

u
n

c
il E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 - B

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 S
tre

e
tlig

h
tin

g

OPC01

OPC06

0
1

. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

0
2

. C
o

u
n

c
il E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 - S

c
h

o
o

ls

OPC02

OPC07

OPC11

Climate Change 10 Year Strategy (2022-2032) 2023/2024   
No of Indicators = 63 | Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is performing against its Polarity 

over time.
Produced by the Business Intelligence Hub April 2024 

Previous Years

Page 25

melleja
Text Box
Annex B


melleja_1
Text Box





Collection 

Frequency
2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/24 Target Polarity DOT

Climate Change 10 Year Strategy (2022-2032) 2023/2024   
No of Indicators = 63 | Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is performing against its Polarity 

over time.
Produced by the Business Intelligence Hub April 2024 

Previous Years

OPC20H

D
Car Club - Hybrid - Miles Annual 59,344 12,066 16,709 42,883 - -

Up is 

Good
▲

Green

OPC20T

C
Car Club - Total - CO2e (000's) Annual 29.62 9.76 26.4 33.59 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

OPC20T

D
Car Club - Total - Miles Annual 127,279 38,750 103,570 139,046 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

OPC20U Car Club  - Unleaded - CO2e (000's) Annual 17.65 7.22 22 22.62 - -
Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

OPC20U

D
Car Club  - Unleaded - Miles Annual 62,924 25,734 80,682 82,444 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

OPC15 Business Travel - Rail - CO2 (tonnes) (000's) Annual 25.51 2.1 6.7 8.75 - -
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

OPC15F Business Travel - Flight - CO2 (tonnes) (000's) Annual 1.67 0 0 0.49 - -
Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

OPC15H Business Travel - Hotel - CO2 (tonnes) (000's) Annual 4.58 0.57 1.5 1.55 - -
Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

OPC15T Business Travel - Total - CO2 (tonnes) (000's) Annual 31.76 2.66 8.2 10.79 - -
Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

The average of maximum annual mean Nitrogen 

Dioxide concentration recorded across three 

areas of technical breach (at points of relevant 

public exposure) (ug/m3) (Calendar Year)

Annual 45.5 38 43.8 44.1 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

The average of maximum annual mean Nitrogen 

Dioxide concentration recorded across three 

areas of technical breach (at points of relevant 

public exposure) (ug/m3) (Calendar Year)

Annual 45.5 38 43.8 44.1 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

CDE06
CO2 emissions (kt) Non Domestic Total (within 

LA scope) (Calendar Year)
Annual 220.1 (2019) 190 (2020) 245.1 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

CO2 emissions (t) Non Domestic Total per head 

of population (within LA scope) (Calendar Year)
Annual 1 (2019) 0.9 (2020) 1.2 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 1.4 (2019) 1.2 (2020) 1.4 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 1.6 (2019) 1.4 (2020) 1.6 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

CDE11
CO2 emissions (kt) Domestic Total (within LA 

scope) (Calendar Year)
Annual 284.1 (2019) 275.5 (2020) 284.73 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

CO2 emissions (t) Domestic Total per head of 

population (within LA scope) (Calendar Year)
Annual 1.3 (2019) 1.3 (2020) 1.4 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 1.4 (2019) 1.4 (2020) 1.4 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 1.5 (2019) 1.4 (2020) 1.4 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

CDE16
CO2 emissions (kt) Transport Total (within LA 

scope) (Calendar Year)
Annual 302.7 (2019) 261.2 (2020) 251.23 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

CO2 emissions (t) Transport Total per head of 

population (within LA scope) (Calendar Year)
Annual 1.4 (2019) 1.2 (2020) 1.2 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 1.4 (2019) 1.2 (2020) 1.3 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 1.4 (2019) 1.2 (2020) 1.2 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

CO2 emissions (tonnes) per head of population 

(within LA scope) (Calendar Year)
Annual 3.8 (2019) 3.4 (2020) 3.9 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 4.2 (2019) 3.8 (2020) 4.1 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 4.5 (2019) 4 (2020) 4.3 (2021)  (Due Jun 2024) - -

CES020i
CO2 sequestered from LA activity - IN 

DEVELOPMENT
Quarterly - - - - - -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Household waste sent for reuse, recycling or 

composting (%) (DEFRA)
Quarterly 48.37% 44.13% 43.17% 41.26% (Prov) 37.91% (Prov at Q3) -

Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

Household waste recycled / composted: 

Benchmark - National Data
Annual 43.80% 42.30% 42.50% 41.70% - -

Household waste recycled / composted: 

Benchmark - Regional Data
Annual 44.20% 42.00% 42.30% 41.50% - -

Household waste recycled / composted: 

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15)
Annual 5 6 10 10 - -

0
6

. C
o

u
n

c
il E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 - C

a
r C

lu
b

0
7

. C
o

u
n

c
il E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 - 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 T

ra
v
e

l
0

8
. C

ity
 W

id
e

 E
m

is
s
io

n
s

CAN038

CDE07

CDE12

CDE17

CES020

CES36

Page 26



Collection 

Frequency
2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/24 Target Polarity DOT

Climate Change 10 Year Strategy (2022-2032) 2023/2024   
No of Indicators = 63 | Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is performing against its Polarity 

over time.
Produced by the Business Intelligence Hub April 2024 

Previous Years

Carbon emissions across the city (kilotonnes of 

carbon dioxide equivalent) - (Calendar Year)
Annual 912 (2019) 816 (2020) - - - -

Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

Carbon emissions across the city (kilotonnes of 

carbon dioxide equivalent) - (Calendar Year)
Annual 912 (2019) 816 (2020) - - - -

Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

Level of CO2 emissions from council buildings 

and operations (tonnes of carbon dioxide 

equivalent)

Annual NC 3,657.56 3,633.3 3,462.42 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Level of CO2 emissions from council buildings 

and operations (tonnes of carbon dioxide 

equivalent)

Annual NC 3,657.56 3,633.3 3,462.42 - -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

The number of CYC electric vehicle recharging 

points in York (updated definition Q4 21/22 to 

CYC points only)

Quarterly 102 102 62 110 103  (at Q3) -
Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

Benchmark - Comparator Data Quarterly - - - - - -

EV charging usage (kWH) - IN DEVELOPMENT Quarterly - - - - - -
Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

Benchmark - Comparator Data Quarterly - - - - - -

CAN029i
% of ultra-low emission Licensed Taxis operating 

in York (Electric and Hybrid)
Quarterly 19.90% 25.00% 30.60% 34.40% 36.90%  (at Q3) -

Up is 

Good
▲

Green

CAN029ii

% of ultra-low emission Buses (ULEB) operating 

in York (Electric and Hybrid) - (low emission 

Buses before 2022/23)

Quarterly 6.00% 90.00% 90.00% 40.00% 60.00% (at Q3) -
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

CES34

% of customers arriving at York Station by 

sustainable modes of transport (cycling, walking, 

taxi or bus - excluding cars, Lift, Motorcycle, 

Train) (LI 4a) - (Calendar Year)

Annual 71.90% (2019) NC  (2020) 79.40% (2021) NC  (Due 2023) - -
Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

EV03

Number of publicly available EV charging 

DEVICES (may have more than one charging 

connector) recorded on ZapMap - All speeds

Quarterly - 75 101 154 190 (at Q3) -
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

Rate of publicly available EV charging DEVICES 

(may have more than one charging connector) 

recorded on ZapMap per 100,000 population - All 

speeds

Quarterly - 35.61 47.86 76.36 94.21 (at Q3) -
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

Benchmark - National Data Quarterly - 34.22 45.77 60.5 82.03  (at Q3) -

Benchmark - Regional Data Quarterly - 20.48 27.4 36.61 48.69 (at Q3) -

EV04

Number of publicly available EV charging 

DEVICES (may have more than one charging 

connector) recorded on ZapMap – Rapid chargers

Quarterly - 13 14 29 45 (at Q3) -
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

Rate of publicly available EV charging DEVICES 

(may have more than one charging connector) 

recorded on ZapMapper 100,000 population – 

Rapid chargers

Quarterly - 6.17 6.63 14.38 22.31 (at Q3) -
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

Benchmark - National Data Quarterly - 6.26 8.03 11.06 14.91 (at Q3) -

Benchmark - Regional Data Quarterly - 6.03 7.94 10.62 13.92 (at Q3) -

OPC22
New cycling and walking infrastructure installed 

(km) - IN DEVELOPMENT
Annual - - - - - -

Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

Number of dwellings on the EPC Register - 

(Snapshot)
Quarterly - - - 62,647 59,507 (at Q3) - Neutral

◄►
Neutral

% of dwellings with energy rating in ‘A’ band in 

the EPC Register (where A is the most energy 

efficient and G is the least energy efficient) - 

(Snapshot)

Quarterly - - - 0.40% 0.50% (at Q3) - Neutral
◄►

Neutral

% of dwellings with energy rating in ‘B’ band in 

the EPC Register (where A is the most energy 

efficient and G is the least energy efficient) - 

(Snapshot)

Quarterly - - - 9.20% 9.60% (at Q3) - Neutral
◄►

Neutral

% of dwellings with energy rating in ‘C’ band in 

the EPC Register (where A is the most energy 

efficient and G is the least energy efficient) - 

(Snapshot)

Quarterly - - - 32.40% 33.90% (at Q3) - Neutral
◄►

Neutral

% of dwellings with energy rating in ‘D’ band in 

the EPC Register (where A is the most energy 

efficient and G is the least energy efficient) - 

(Snapshot)

Quarterly - - - 44.50% 43.90% (at Q3) - Neutral
◄►

Neutral1
0

. E
P

C
 R

a
tin

g

EPC01

0
9

. S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 T
ra

v
e

l

CAN026

EV02

EV03a

EV04a

0
8

. C
ity

 W
id

e
 E

m
is

s
io

n
s

GCC02

GCC03

Page 27



Collection 

Frequency
2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/24 Target Polarity DOT

Climate Change 10 Year Strategy (2022-2032) 2023/2024   
No of Indicators = 63 | Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is performing against its Polarity 

over time.
Produced by the Business Intelligence Hub April 2024 

Previous Years

% of dwellings with energy rating in ‘E’ band in 

the EPC Register (where A is the most energy 

efficient and G is the least energy efficient) - 

(Snapshot)

Quarterly - - - 11.40% 10.30% (at Q3) - Neutral
◄►

Neutral

% of dwellings with energy rating in ‘F’ band in 

the EPC Register (where A is the most energy 

efficient and G is the least energy efficient) - 

(Snapshot)

Quarterly - - - 1.70% 1.50% (at Q3) - Neutral
◄►

Neutral

% of dwellings with energy rating in ‘G’ band in 

the EPC Register (where A is the most energy 

efficient and G is the least energy efficient) - 

(Snapshot)

Quarterly - - - 0.40% 0.30% (at Q3) - Neutral
◄►

Neutral

EPC01ac

% of dwellings with energy rating in A-C band in 

the EPC Register (where A is the most energy 

efficient and G is the least energy efficient) - 

(Snapshot)

Monthly - NC NC 42.00% 44.00% (at Q3) -
Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

CO2 emissions per year in tonnes/year 

(properties on the EPC register) - (Snapshot)
Quarterly - - - 211,552 198,496 (at Q3) -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

Potential CO2 emissions per year in tonnes/year 

(properties on the EPC register) - (Snapshot)
Quarterly - - - 118,284 107,538 (at Q3) - Neutral

◄►
Neutral

GCC05 Number of trees planted (CYC) Annual 515 271 73 1,099 - -
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

OPC21 Biodiversity Net Gain - IN DEVELOPMENT Annual - - - - - -
Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

OPC23
Number of business supported to be resource 

efficient - IN DEVELOPMENT
Annual - - - - - -

Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

OPC24
Number of Decarbonisation Plans / Travel Plans - 

 IN DEVELOPMENT
Annual - - - - - -

Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

OPC28 Grid Carbon Intensity - IN DEVELOPMENT Annual - - - - - -
Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

% of Talkabout panel satisfied with their local 

area as a place to live
Quarterly 84.47% 84.90% 84.38% 82.18% 79.68% (at Q3) -

Up is 

Good
▼
Red

% of Talkabout panel dissatisfied with their local 

area as a place to live
Quarterly 10.12% 7.67% 9.74% 10.64% 13.10% (at Q3) -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

% of Talkabout panel who think that the council 

are doing well at improving green spaces
Quarterly 42.14% 44.31% 43.26% 38.30% 36.84% (at Q3) -

Up is 

Good
▼
Red

% of Talkabout panel who think that the council 

are not doing well at improving green spaces
Quarterly 44.14% 31.93% 41.25% 45.74% 45.43% (at Q3) -

Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

% of panel who think that the council and 

partners are doing well helping to reduce carbon 

footprint

Quarterly 22.69% 28.22% 34.86% 41.99% 35.08% (at Q3) -
Up is 

Good
◄►

Neutral

% of panel who think that the council and 

partners are not doing well helping to reduce 

carbon footprint

Quarterly 55.61% 44.55% 53.39% 43.83% 47.24% (at Q3) -
Up is 

Bad
◄►

Neutral

1
3

. 

E
n

e
r

g
y
 

1
4

. R
e

s
id

e
n

t S
a

tifa
c
tio

n

TAP01

TAP30

TAP34

1
0

. E
P

C
 R

a
tin

g

EPC01

EPC02

1
1

. N
a

tu
ra

l 

E
n

v
iro

n
m

e
n

t

1
2

. 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

 a
n

d
 

Page 28



Current Year

Collection 

Frequency
2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 Target Polarity DOT

GVA per head (balanced calculations) (£) Annual 27,572 30,684
 (Avail Apr 

2024)
- -

Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

Regional Rank (Rank out of 12) Annual 2 2
 (Avail Apr 

2024)
- -

CJGE187 GVA per hour worked- IN DEVELOPMENT Annual - - - - -
Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

CFC05
GVA per worker (Rank out of 63) (64 before 

2022/23)
Annual 42 N/C

 (Avail Oct 

2024)
- -

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

CFC26
GVA (£ billion) (Rank out of 63) (64 before 

2022/23)
Annual 39 41 43 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

Median earnings of residents - Gross Weekly Pay 

(£)
Annual £572.6 £597.9 £611 - -

Up is 

Good
▲

Green

Benchmark - National Data Annual £587.1 £613.1 £644.7 - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual £540.4 £568.5 £594.5 - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 4 1 1 - -

CJGE16
Earnings gap between the 25 percentile and the 

median (£) (York)
Annual £168.2 £193.6 £164.2 - -

Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

Median earnings of residents - Gross Weekly Pay 

(£) - Gender Pay Gap
Annual £54 £146.6 £44.7 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

Benchmark - National Data Annual £78.9 £96.2 £99.7 - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual £82 £103 £113.2 - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 8 11 1 - -

% of working age population qualified - to at least 

L2 and above (New methodology from 2022/23)
Annual 83.60% 87.90% 94.20% - -

Up is 

Good
▲

Green

Benchmark - National Data Annual 78.20% 78.20% 85.80% - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 75.90% 76.40% 84.50% - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 3 1 1 - -

% of working age population qualified - to at least 

L4 and above (New methodology from 2022/23)
Annual 46.40% 59.30% 60.30% - -

Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 43.10% 43.50% 45.70% - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 37.30% 38.00% 38.90% - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 5 1 3 - -

CFC23
Working age population with qualification at 

NVQ4+ (%) (Rank out of 63) (64 before 2022/23)
Annual 8 4 5 - -

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

GWC01
% of Total Employees working for an Accredited 

Good Business Charter employer
Annual 0.00% 12.10% 13.40% - - Neutral

◄►
Neutral

BLW01
% of Total Employees working for an Accredited 

Living Wage employer
Annual 4.70% 14.50% 16.00% - - Neutral

◄►
Neutral

CJGE188 Indicator TBC - IN DEVELOPMENT Annual - - - - - Neutral
◄►

Neutral

CDE01
CO2 emissions (kt) Non Domestic Electricity 

(within LA scope) (Calendar Year)
Annual 71.7 (2020)

83.48 

(2021)

 (Due Jun 

2024)
- -

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

CJGE32 Business Startups - (YTD) Monthly 917 746 870 631 (to Q3) -
Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

Survival of Newly Born Businesses post 1 year Annual 97.30% 94.00% 94.40% - -
Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark: Post 2 years Annual 83.50%  (Due 2023)  (Due 2024) - - Neutral
◄►

Neutral

Benchmark: Post 3 years Annual  (Due 2023)  (Due 2024)  (Due 2025) - - Neutral
◄►

Neutral

0
6
. T

h
e
m

e
: T

h
riv

in
g
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s NBB01

0
3
. H

e
a
d
lin

e
 - Q

u
a
lific

a
tio

n
s

CJGE18

CJGE20

0
4
. T

h
e
m

e
: 

G
o
o
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

0
5
. T

h
e
m

e
: 

G
re

e
n
e
r 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y

0
1
. H

e
a
d
lin

e
 - G

V
A

CJGE33

0
2
. H

e
a
d
lin

e
 - P

a
y

CJGE14

CJGE68

Previous Years

Economic 10 Year Strategy (2022-2032) at March 2024   
No of Indicators = 26 | Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is performing against its 

Polarity over time.
Produced by the Business Intelligence Hub April 2024 

Page 29

melleja_2
Text Box
Annex C




Current Year

Collection 

Frequency
2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 Target Polarity DOT

Previous Years

Economic 10 Year Strategy (2022-2032) at March 2024   
No of Indicators = 26 | Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is performing against its 

Polarity over time.
Produced by the Business Intelligence Hub April 2024 

emp1
% of working age population in employment (16-

64)
Quarterly 76.60% 81.80% 83.60% 80.60% (To Q2) -

Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

CJGE130 Universal Credit: Claimants Monthly 13,187 11,103 11,524 12,619 (to Q3) -
Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

TOU01 Room Occupancy (%) - (Hotels) Monthly 31.98% 65.13% 80.10% 86.20%  (to Q3) -
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

TOU32 Visitor Satisfaction - Likely to recommend (%) Quarterly 92.00% 89.00% 98.00% 98.00% (to Q3) -
Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

TOU14 Parliament Street Footfall Monthly 3,876,800 6,955,548 6,869,593 2,216,719 (to Q3) -
Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

% of vacant shops - City Centre Monthly 8.89% 8.49% 8.50% 8.90% (to Q3) -
Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data (Local Data Company) Annual 13.70% 14.40% 13.80% - -

TOU30 Visitor Satisfaction - Score (out of 5) Quarterly 4.51 4.68 4.75 4.14 (to Q3) -
Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

Housing affordability (median house prices to 

earnings ratio)
Annual 8.5 8.85 9.3 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

Benchmark - National Data Annual 5.02 8.92 8.14 - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 14 14 15 - -

% of pupils achieving 9-4 or above in English & 

Maths at Key Stage 4 (C or above before 2016/17)
Annual NC 75.30% 70.20% - -

Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual NC 56.10% 65.30% - -

Total GVA (balanced calculations) (£ billion) Annual 5.82 6.19
 (Avail Apr 

2024)
- -

Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

Regional Rank (Rank out of 11) Annual 10 10
 (Avail Apr 

2024)
- -

0
7

. T
h

e
m

e
: 

T
h

riv
in

g
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

0
8
. T

h
e
m

e
: 

G
lo

b
a
l c

ity
0
9
. T

h
e
m

e
: A

d
d
itio

n
a
l

CJGE23

CJGE171

KS4c

CJGE34

Page 30



Collection 

Frequency
2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 Polarity DOT

Slope index of inequality in life expectancy at birth - 

Female - (Three year period)
Annual 5.7 - -

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 7.9 - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 3 - -

Slope index of inequality in life expectancy at birth - Male - 

(Three year period)
Annual 8.4 - -

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 9.7 - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 3 - -

Difference in healthy life expectancy at birth between 

females and males (yrs)
Annual -0.7 - - Neutral

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 0.8 - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 1 - -

% of people with a self-reported high anxiety score Annual 27.01% 25.26% 26.17%
Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 24.13% 22.55% 23.32%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 24.88% 22.30% 24.24%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 11 14 11

% of people with a self-reported low happiness score Annual 8.86% 10.80% 6.21%
Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 9.21% 8.41% 8.85%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 10.33% 7.88% 9.57%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 7 14 2

Smoking Prevalence in adults (18+) - current smokers 

(APS) (2020 definition)
Annual 11.70% 9.20% 8.70%

Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

Benchmark - National Data Annual 13.80% 13.00% 12.70%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 14.70% 14.10% 13.10%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 3 1 1

Smoking prevalence among adults aged 18-64 in routine 

and manual occupations (APS) (2020 definition)
Annual 22.30% 20.90% 15.20%

Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

Benchmark - National Data Annual 24.50% 23.60% 22.50%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 25.50% 24.20% 21.70%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 5 4 1

% of women who smoke at the time of delivery - (CYC) Annual 10.30% 8.00% 8.10%
Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 9.60% 9.10% 8.80%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 13.10% 12.00% 11.60%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 3 1 1

Smoking prevalence in adults with a long term mental 

health condition (18+) - current smokers (GPPS)
Annual 26.30% 23.10% 20.90%

Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

Benchmark - National Data Annual 26.30% 25.20% 25.10%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 27.50% 27.50% 25.40%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 4 4 3

Health and Wellbeing 10 Year Strategy (2022-2032) 2023/2024   
No of Indicators = 34 | Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is 

performing against its Polarity over time.
Produced by the Business Intelligence Hub April 2024 

G
o
a
l 0

2
: S

u
p
p
o
rt g

o
o
d
 m

e
n
ta

l h
e
a
lth

PHOF18

PHOF19

G
o
a
l 0

3
: R

e
d
u
c
e
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 ra

te
s

PHOF188

PHOF187

PHOF10

PHOF195

G
o
a
l 0

1
: R

e
d
u
c
e
 th

e
 g

a
p
 in

 h
e
a
lth

y
 life

 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y

PHOF17

PHOF37

PHOF98

Previous Years

Page 31

melleja_3
Text Box
Annex D


melleja_4
Text Box

melleja_5
Text Box





Collection 

Frequency
2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 Polarity DOT

Health and Wellbeing 10 Year Strategy (2022-2032) 2023/2024   
No of Indicators = 34 | Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is 

performing against its Polarity over time.
Produced by the Business Intelligence Hub April 2024 

Previous Years

Admitted to hospital with alcohol-related conditions 

(Broad): Males, all ages (per 100,000 population) - (New 

methodology)

Annual 2,455 2,913 -
Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 2,290 2,682 -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 2,292 2,678 -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 9 10 -

Admitted to hospital with alcohol-related conditions 

(Broad): Females, all ages (per 100,000 population) - 

(New methodology)

Annual 943 1,075 -
Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 805 906 -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 831 955 -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 11 12 -

Percentage of adults drinking over 14 units of alcohol a 

week - (4 year Aggregated)
Annual

21.40% 

(2018/19)

21.40% 

(2018/19)

21.40% 

(2018/19)

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual
22.80% 

(2018/19)

22.80% 

(2018/19)

22.80% 

(2018/19)

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual
21.20% 

(2018/19)

21.20% 

(2018/19)

21.20% 

(2018/19)

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 9 (2018/19) 9 (2018/19) 9 (2018/19)

% of reception year children recorded as being 

overweight (incl. obese) (single year)
Annual NC 22.70% 19.90%

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 27.70% 22.25% 21.31%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 29.50% 23.73% 22.50%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual NC 3 2

% of children in Year 6 recorded as being overweight 

(incl. obese) (single year)
Annual NC 31.54% 32.50%

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 40.90% 37.76% 36.57%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 42.20% 39.19% 38.10%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual NC 1 1

NCMP10
Absolute gap in % of Year 6 recorded obesity between 

highest and lowest York ward (3 year aggregated)
Annual NC 19.70% 19.29%

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

% of adults (aged 18+) classified as overweight or obese 

(New definition)
Annual 63.60% 59.50% -

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 63.30% 63.80% -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 66.30% 66.50% -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 4 1 -

Gap in employment rate for mental health clients and the 

overall employment rate
Annual 56.60% - -

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 66.10% - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 62.80% - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 3 - -

Gap in employment rate for mental health clients and the 

overall employment rate (new definition 21/22 onwards)
Annual - 64.80% -

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual - 69.40% -

G
o
a
l 0

6
: R

e
d
u
c
e
 h

e
a
lth

 in
e
q
u
a
litie

s

PHOF40

PHOF40a

G
o
a
l 0

4
: R

e
d
u
c
e
 p

ro
p
o
rtio

n
 o

f re
s
id

e
n
ts

 d
rin

k
in

g
 o

v
e
r1

4
 u

n
its

 o
f a

lc
o
h
o
l a

 

w
e
e
k

LAPE12

LAPE13

PHOF191

G
o
a
l 0

5
: R

e
d
u
c
e
 u

n
h
e
a
lth

y
 w

e
ig

h
t

NCMP03

NCMP04

PHOF44a

Page 32



Collection 

Frequency
2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 Polarity DOT

Health and Wellbeing 10 Year Strategy (2022-2032) 2023/2024   
No of Indicators = 34 | Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is 

performing against its Polarity over time.
Produced by the Business Intelligence Hub April 2024 

Previous Years

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual - 66.50% -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual - 5 -

Gap in employment rate for those with learning disabilities 

and the overall employment rate
Annual 68.90% 74.30% -

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 70.00% 70.60% -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 67.80% 69.40% -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 7 15 -

Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with serious 

mental illness (New definition from Aug 2021)
Annual 425.3 - -

Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

Benchmark - National Data Annual 389.9 - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 344.2 - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 14 - -

Suicide rate - Female (per 100,000 population) Annual 5.43 6.25 6.38
Up is 

Bad
▲
Red

Benchmark - National Data Annual 4.94 5.11 5.18

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 6.07 6.51 6.14

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 4 9 8

Suicide rate - Male (per 100,000 population) Annual 21.7 20.86 19.65
Up is 

Bad
▼

Green

Benchmark - National Data Annual 16.03 16.03 15.83

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 19.33 18.96 18.27

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 12 11 11

Hospital stays for self harm, per 100,000 population Annual 172.4 155.1 -
Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 181.2 163.7 -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 172.7 146.6 -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 7 9 -

Estimated dementia diagnosis rate (%) for people aged 

65+ as recorded on practice disease registers
Annual 57.20% 53.20% 55.10%

Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 67.40% 61.60% 62.00%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 70.20% 63.20% 63.10%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 15 14 14

Calculated Diabetes Diagnosis Rate Annual 77.20% 80.20% 82.70%
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

Benchmark - National Data Annual 85.50% 88.70% 92.40%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 87.80% 90.80% 85.80%

Calculated Hypertension Diagnosis Rate Annual 65.90% 67.50% 71.40%
Up is 

Good
▲

Green

Benchmark - National Data Annual 71.80% 73.00% 76.40%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 72.30% 73.60% 68.20%

Percentage of cancers diagnosed at stages 1 and 2 Annual 49.51% 52.60%
(Due Feb 

2025)

Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

G
o
a
l 0

7
: R

e
d
u
c
e
 th

e
 ra

te
s
 o

f s
u
ic

id
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
lf-h

a
rm

PHOF107

PHOF108

PHE02

G
o
a
l 0

8
: Im

p
ro

v
e
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
is

 g
a
p
s
 in

 d
e
m

e
n
tia

, d
ia

b
e
te

s
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
 b

lo
o
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 

a
n
d
 d

e
te

c
t c

a
n
c
e
r a

t a
n
 e

a
rlie

r s
ta

g
e

PHE11

PHOF192

c

PHOF193

c

PHOF194

G
o
a
l 0

6
: R

e
d
u
c
e
 h

e
a
lth

 in
e
q
u
a
litie

s

PHOF40a

PHOF41

PHOF75a

Page 33



Collection 

Frequency
2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 Polarity DOT

Health and Wellbeing 10 Year Strategy (2022-2032) 2023/2024   
No of Indicators = 34 | Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is 

performing against its Polarity over time.
Produced by the Business Intelligence Hub April 2024 

Previous Years

Benchmark - National Data Annual 52.35% 54.42%
(Due Feb 

2025)

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 50.69% 52.64%
(Due Feb 

2025)

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 12 8
(Due Feb 

2025)

Access to Healthy Assets & Hazards Index (Persons, All 

ages) - % of the population who live in LSOAs which 

score in the poorest performing 20% on the AHAH index

Annual NC NC 3.20%
Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual NC NC 22.60%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual NC NC 19.90%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual NC NC 1

% of adults (aged 19+) that are physically inactive (<30 

moderate intensity equivalent minutes per week)
Annual 21.21% 15.40% -

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 23.38% 22.30% -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 24.24% 23.60% -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 3 1 -

% of children in school years 1-11 that are active for 60+ 

minutes everyday
Annual 41.81% NC NC

Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 44.63% 47.20% 47.00% Neutral
◄►

Neutral

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 46.40% 45.70% 47.50%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 7 NC NC

Proportion of adults who do any walking or cycling for any 

purpose at least three times per week.
Annual 58.90% 55.00% 59.40%

Up is 

Good

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 46.00% 45.60% 45.80%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 44.60% 43.00% 43.00%

Proportion of people who use services who reported that 

they had as much social contact as they would like
Annual 35.40% 39.70% 41.30%

Up is 

Good
▲

Green

Benchmark - National Data Annual 34.40% 40.60% 44.40%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual NC 40.20% 46.30%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual NC 11 13

Loneliness: Percentage of adults who feel lonely often / 

always or some of the time
Annual NC NC NC

Up is 

Bad

◄►
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual NC NC NC

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual NC NC NC

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual NC NC NC

% of adult social care users who have as much social 

contact as they would like (65+ yrs)
Annual NC 39.20% 37.40%

Up is 

Good
▼
Red

Benchmark - National Data Annual NC 37.30% 41.50%

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual NC 36.80% 44.10%

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual NC 6 12

G
o
a
l 1

0
: R

e
d
u
c
e
 th

e
 p

ro
p
o
rtio

n
 o

f a
d
u
lts

 w
h
o
 re

p
o
rt fe

e
lin

g
 lo

n
e
ly

ASCOF1I1

PHOF112

PHOF99

G
o
a
l 0

9
: R

e
d
u
c
e
 th

e
 p

ro
p
o
rtio

n
 o

f a
d
u
lts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 in
a
c
tiv

e
 fro

m
 1

 in
 5

 to
 1

 in
 7

HLTH55

PHOF02a

PHYS08

PHYS12

G
o
a
l 0

8
: Im

p
ro

v
e
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
is

 g
a
p
s
 in

 d
e
m

e
n
tia

, d
ia

b
e
te

s
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
 b

lo
o
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 

a
n
d
 d

e
te

c
t c

a
n
c
e
r a

t a
n
 e

a
rlie

r s
ta

g
e

PHOF194

Page 34



 

 

  
 

   

 
Corporate Services, Climate Change and Scrutiny 
Management Committee 
 

13 May 2024 

Report of the Director of Governance 
 
Monitoring and Tracking of Approved Council Motions 

 
Summary 
 

1. This report provides information on approved Council motions since 
November 2023, when this Committee last considered an update.  
Wherever possible due to more pressing work plan commitments, the 
Committee endeavours to monitor approved Council Motions biannually. 
 
Background 
 

2. At its meeting in May 2022, the Committee confirmed its aim to ensure a 
transparent and regular monitoring process was in place in relation to 
approved Council motions.  It also noted that the Council Management 
Team (CMT) continued to monitor motions agreed at Council meetings to 
ensure delivery of any agreed actions.  The Committee felt that receiving 
a bi-annual report on progress, following on from consideration by CMT, 
would provide a robust and transparent platform for ensuring delivery of 
agreed Council motions and actions.  
 

3. Annex A to this report includes details of motions approved by Full 
Council since January 2023, showing progress against implementation of 
any agreed actions.  
 
Analysis 
 

4. The approved resolutions relating to motions have, where possible, been 
split down in Annex A into easier to read actions. Each action has been 
assigned a relevant directorate ‘owner’, and each responsible Officer has 
agreed to keep relevant Members informed of progress.  In addition, 
CMT are able to review the schedule attached after every Council 
meeting, setting appropriate actions.  
 

Page 35 Agenda Item 5



 

Consultation 
  

5. CMT has been consulted on the process of monitoring approved Council 
motions and have acknowledged collective responsibility for ensuring 
appropriate implementation of agreed motions. CMT will continue to 
monitor the attached schedule and progress and set appropriate action 
owners after every Council meeting. 
  
Options 
 

6. This report is provided for transparency purposes and is therefore for 
information only. 

  
Council Plan 2023-27 
 

7. Whilst this report does not in itself materially affect how the work of 
scrutiny can support and develop the Council’s overall priorities set out in 
the new Council Plan 2023-27, the proper and effective implementation 
of approved Council motions can contribute to those priorities dependent 
upon the area of concern being addressed in those motions.  

  
 Implications 

 

8. There are no financial, equalities, legal, information technology, crime & 
disorder, sustainability or other implications associated with the 
recommendations in this report.  However, there may, of course, be 
implications associated with the implementation of any of the motions 
listed in Annex A, which will be addressed by responsible officers.  

 
Risk Management 

 
9. Clearly, if the implementation of approved Council motions is not 

satisfactorily monitored, there is a risk to the organisation around the 
delivery of democratically taken resolutions.   

 
 Recommendations 
 

10. Members are asked to note the contents of Annex A to this report. 
 
Reason: To ensure that processes for monitoring and implementing 

approved Council motion resolutions remain sufficiently 
robust. 

 
 

Page 36



 

Contact Details 
Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Dawn Steel 
Democratic Services Team 
Leader 
dawn.steel@york.gov.uk  

Bryn Roberts 
Director of Governance  

Report Approved  Date 01/05/24 

 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
None 

 
Wards Affected:   

 
All 

 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: None 
 
Annexes:  
Annex A – ‘Live’ Council Motions 

Page 37

mailto:dawn.steel@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A 
Council Motions 
 

Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer 
/ Executive 

Member  

Actions taken  Status  

15/12/2022  Delivering 
Effective 
Customer 
Services to 
York 
Residents  

Council resolves to request that the 
Executive, including as part of its current 
budget preparations:   

 publicly acknowledges the 
hard work of customer services 
staff and the impact of increased 
workloads on their ability to meet 
resident expectations, and 
apologises for the council’s 
ongoing inability to effectively 
respond to residents’ issues in a 
timely way;   
 commits to reinstate the 
customer services call-back 
service to residents once current 
vacant positions are filled and 
new staff have been trained;   
 commits to reviewing the 
functioning of the relevant 
council services as a priority, 
with a focus to include: staffing 
and operating hours of the 
customer call centre;   
 ensuring access to non-digital 
council services is an easy, 
straightforward process;   
 categorisation of services on, 
and user-friendliness of, a 
council website a significant 

Pauline 
Stuchfield   

Call- back service on track to be 
back in place by early summer 
2023. Regarding abusive calls the 
steps being taken, monitoring and 
a team stress risk assessment 
approach were all outlined at 
Customer & Corporate 
Management of Scrutiny 
Committee on 6th March 2023. All 
other elements will be built into a 
coproduced Customer Strategy 
for approval in 2024.  
Update: policy under 
development regarding customer 
behaviour. Customer strategy 
delayed to be built into Customer 
Experience work following the 
restructure.  

Ongoing  

P
age 39



number of residents struggle to 
navigate;   
 a more effective and simpler 
system for monitoring and 
recording of abusive calls to 
staff, including a clear structure 
for escalation, response and staff 
well-being support.  

 
  

P
age 40



 

Council 
Meeting  

 Motion   Resolutions  Lead 
Officer / 

Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

15/12/2022   York Opposes 
Voter ID 
Requirements  

Council therefore resolves to:  
 Request the Chief 
Operating Officer writes to 
the Cabinet Office to 
express the Council’s 
serious concern as to the 
introduction of mandatory 
Voter ID in any UK 
elections.   

Ian Floyd / 
Bryn 

Roberts  

Letter sent on 03/03/2023 to 
Government from West 
Yorkshire Chief Executives, 
which York supports, aimed at 
raising significant concerns 
relating to the implementation 
of the requirement for electors 
to show photographic 
identification in the polling 
station from 04/05/2023.   

Completed   

      Request a report is 
brought to a public 
meeting of the council’s 
Executive outlining: the 
plans and update on 
preparations to introduce 
mandatory voter ID for the 
May 2023 local election in 
York   

  

Ian Floyd / 
Bryn 

Roberts  

Report to be tabled at March’s 
Executive Meeting.   
  
Completed.   
  

Completed   

      the potential cost as 
well as consideration of 
any practical issues 
involved in issuing postal 
vote application forms to 
every eligible voter on the 
Electoral Register in 
York.use the council’s 

Ian Floyd / 
Bryn 

Roberts  

Completed.   Completed   

P
age 41



communications function 
to regularly promote postal 
voting, and frequently in 
the months prior to an 
election.  

  
  
  

P
age 42



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer 
/ Executive 

Member  

Actions taken  Status  

15/12/2022  Introduction 
of Council 
Tax Premium 
for Second 
Homes  

Council therefore resolves to:   
· Request officers to bring a paper 
to a meeting of the Executive 
outlining the implications and 
options for implementing a 100% 
council tax premium of second 
homes in York, with a view to 
implementing the policy once 
national legislation has been 
granted Royal assent.   

Pauline 
Stuchfield   

The council is required to take any 
decision a year in advance of being 
able to apply any change in the 
liability for second homes.  The 
decision was taken in last years 
budget paper however the Act 
(Levelling Up and Regeneration 
Bill) has not yet been passed to 
allow LA’s the power to do this.  
  
The same decision is being 
included in this years budget 
papers to come into effect on 1st 
April 2025 should the Act be 
passed in time.  
  

Ongoing  

     Request the Chief 
Operating Officer to write to 
relevant Minsters on behalf of 
the Council in support of the 
introduction of the council tax 
premium for second homes 
and seek assurance that 
loopholes that could see 
second home owners avoid 
the payment of the premium 
will be addressed.  

Pauline 
Stuchfield/Ian 

Floyd  

Completed  Completed   

  
  
  

P
age 43



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer 
/ Executive 

Member  

Actions taken  Status  

23/03/23  Care 
Leavers’ 
Transport 
Costs  

Council therefore resolves to request that 
following May’s elections, the new 
Executive consider what additional offer 
could be made to Care Leavers including 
assessing the feasibility of also offering 
care leavers the option of:  

 Financial assistance with 
annual bus travel, a 16–25 rail 
card and discounted access to 
the TIER e-cycle/ e-scooter 
scheme up to the age of 25;  
 Free urban cycle skills 
training;  
 A contribution towards a 
bicycle and appropriate 
protective clothing and through 
working with partners, find ways 
to cover the full costs of a new 
bicycle and appropriate 
accessories.  

New 
Administration 

/  
Martin Kelly    

    

  
  
  
  

P
age 44



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer 
/ Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

23/03/23  
  

Return to 
Community 
Policing  

The Council consequently resolves to:  
 Request that Group 
Leaders write to the North 
Yorkshire Police, Fire and 
Crime Commissioner calling 
for a reversal of the current 
freeze in PCSO recruitment 
and commitment to 
significantly increase the 
number of PCSOs in the 
region.  

Group 
Leaders / 

James 
Gilchrist / 

Jane 
Mowat    

NOT 
OFFICERS  

    

     Request that Council 
officers work with the North 
Yorkshire Police to produce a 
report to the Executive 
Member on how 
neighbourhood improvement 
plans can be developed, 
which review how best to 
holistically design out anti-
social behaviour in the area.  

James 
Gilchrist / 

Jane Mowat  

To be discussed with the new 
Executive once the Safer York 
Partnership Strategy has been 
completed.  

  

  

     Invite the North Yorkshire 
Police, Fire and Crime 
Commissioner to a public 
meeting to answer councillor 
questions and set out plans to 
improve community policing in 
York.  

Bryn 
Roberts   

    

P
age 45



                  Call on Safer York 
Partnership chair to explore 
best ways to embed 
Community Safety Officers 
within the Community Safety 
Hub.  

James 
Gilchrist / 

Jane Mowat  
  

Working ongoing between the 
Police (who chair Safer York 
Partnership) and Council and 
other partners to best deliver the 
strategy.  

  

  

     Request that the Safer 
York Partnership 
representatives engage and 
consult ward councillors in the 
development of the 
Community Safety Strategy 
2023-2026.  

James 
Gilchrist / 

Jane Mowat  
  

For the First Time it is proposed 
that the Community Safety 
Strategy developed by the 
Council and partners is approved 
at Executive and Council.   

  

  

  P
age 46



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer 
/ Executive 

Member  

Actions taken  Status  

23/03/23  
  

Removing 
Barriers to an 
Education 
and 
Educational 
Attainment  

Council resolves:  
 to request the Executive 
commits the council to a 
policy of working with external 
organisations to provide FSM 
to all primary school pupils, 
starting with those schools 
most in need;  

  2 Primary schools have piloted 
universal free school meals 
and free school breakfasts 
from January 2024.  The 
Community Fund has been 
established to support the York 
Hungry Minds Project.  

Ongoing  

     to write to all York 
secondary schools, 
highlighting the Child Poverty 
Action Group (CPAG) ‘Cost of 
the School Day’ project to ask 
that students eligible for FSMs 
are able to use their 
allowance at any time during 
the school day, and to agree 
to the rolling over of any 
unspent money to be used in 
the future;  

Martin Kelly / 
Maxine 
Squire / 
Pauline 

Stuchfield   

York Schools and Academies 
Board have adopted poverty 
proofing as one of their 
priorities for 2023-24.  

Completed  

     to commit to a twin track 
approach of working through 
the LGA on FSM automatic 
enrolment as well as 
expanding eligibility for FSM 
by increasing the income 
threshold, and through the 
NEU on ensuring FSM 
provision becomes universal 

Martin Kelly / 
Maxine 
Squire / 
Pauline 

Stuchfield   

Auto enrolment has been 
piloted with two primary 
schools in September 
2023.  The council is 
continuing to work with the Fix 
Our Food Project to scale up 
auto enrolment to include all 
schools in 2023-24.   Work is 
taking place to roll out auto 
enrolment across all schools 

Ongoing  

P
age 47



for every primary school 
child;  

for the academic year 2024-
25.  

     to write, through the 
Corporate Director for 
Children’s Services, to all 
local authority-maintained 
schools and academy 
schools:  
 requesting information on 
how they are meeting 
Government statutory 
guidance on keeping school 
uniform affordable, and 
keeping branded items to a 
minimum, to reassure Council 
that schools are not excluding 
students based on income 
and are genuinely open to all;  
 inviting all schools to work 
with the local authority in 
developing a York protocol 
which describes ‘What should 
be ordinarily available’ for 
pupils with SEND ensuring 
there is a fair and consistent 
application of the SEND Code 
of Practice by schools to 
protect the rights of these 
pupils.  

Martin Kelly / 
Maxine 
Squire  

A letter has been sent to all 
schools reminding them about 
government statutory guidance 
on school uniform.  Schools 
are following this guidance 
when reviewing uniform.  A 
large number of the city’s 
schools have implemented 
school uniform exchange 
schemes.  
  
Ordinarily available provision 
for SEND guidance has been 
drafted and published via the 
SEND local offer.  The new 
guidance document is being 
launched with all schools at the 
SEND conference on 20th 
November.  

  

  
  

  
  

P
age 48



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer 
/ Executive 

Member  

Actions taken  Status  

23/03/23  
  

Council 
Backs Haxby 
Station 
Project  

The Council therefore resolves to:  
 Endorse and commit to the 
Haxby station project, and fully 
back it to ensure its success.  

      

     Request that all group leaders 
send a joint letter to the 
Department for Transport and 
Network Rail supporting the 
project and urging for the 
remaining Government funding to 
be released from the Restoring 
Your Railway Fund to enable to 
proceed with the project at pace.  

Group 
Leaders   

    

  
  

P
age 49



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer 
/ Executive 

Member  

Actions taken  Status  

20/07/23  Safeguarding 
York’s future  

The council resolves to request   
 that the Lord Mayor and 
Executive Members begin Full  

Council, Executive meetings and 
Executive Member  
Decision Sessions respectively by 
reminding Members of the  
remaining days until 1st January 
2030, by which time we  
have pledged to be carbon neutral 
and requesting that  
Members keep this at the forefront 
of their minds when taking 
decisions;  

      

     that the Leader writes to our 
local MPs urging them to sign  

up to support the Climate & Ecology 
Bill, or thanking them for already 
doing so; and write to Zero Hour, 
and organisers of  
the cross-party campaign for the 
Climate & Ecology Bill,  
expressing its support;  

Cllr 
Douglas   / 

Claire Foale   

    

     that the Executive develops 
a process that demonstrates  

clear commitment to a strengthened 
York 10-year Climate  
Change Strategy by exploring a 
series of intermediate  

Executive 
Members /   

Claire Foale   

Discussion to explore intermediate 
targets held at October 2023 
Scrutiny, report going to EDMS in 
January 2024  

completed  

P
age 50



carbon reduction targets, following 
exploration of the topic at Corporate 
and Climate Scrutiny Committee 
and following  
receipt of an options report to 
Executive;  

     that the Executive Member 
for Transport brings forward an  

updated Local Transport Plan that 
reflects the latest science  
and which includes ambitious 
targets in line with a  
strengthened York 10-year Climate 
Strategy;  

Cllr Kilbane 
/   

 Neil Ferris /   
James 

Gilchrist   

Report went to October Executive 
2023 with Policy Focus Areas, 
detailed consultation will take place 
during winter 2023/24 on detailed 
policies before adoption by 
Exec/Council in the Spring  

Completed  

     that the Executive Members 
for Environment and Climate  

Emergency take steps to implement 
the actions that deliver  
on the Pollinator Strategy to 
achieve a measurable increase  
in biodiversity.  

Councillors 
Jenny Kent 
and Kate 
Ravilious  

    

  
  

P
age 51



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer 
/ Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

20/07/23  Highway 
Maintenance  

Council resolves to request that the 
Executive:  

 Expedites the review of the 
Highways Safety Inspection  

Manual.  

  To be considered as part of future 
review of Highway Infrastructure 
Asset Management. Being 
developed for devolution and the 
new Mayoral Combined Authority. 
The legal requirements for 
maintenance varies depending on 
the highways status.  
  

  

     Explores as part of this 
review, a change to the  

‘investigatory level’ for potholes to 
30mm vertical face depth is 
secured.  

Neil Ferris /  
 James 

Gilchrist   

Report to Executive scheduled 
spring 2024 of the additional funding 
required for this.  

  

     Ensures that the relevant 
scrutiny committee and special  

interest groups (such as those 
relating to cycling and  
disability rights) are consulted to 
better understand the  
impacts of the current approach to 
highway maintenance  
as described in the Manual.  

Neil Ferris /  
 James 

Gilchrist  
  

Adoption of the Highway 
Infrastructure Asset Management 
Plan will go through public decision 
making.  Scrutiny agenda topics are 
not within officer control, but it will be 
suggested to the chair as part of 
decision making.  

  

     That the strategic active 
travel network (as identified in 
the  

draft LCWIP) is prioritised for 
highway maintenance  
treatment and allocated a specific 
budget to complete  

Neil Ferris /  
 James 

Gilchrist  
  

To be considered as part of future 
review of Highway Infrastructure 
Asset Management. Being 
developed for devolution and the 
new Mayoral Combined Authority. 
The legal requirements for 

  

P
age 52



maintenance to a safe standard 
throughout the year.  

maintenance varies depending on 
the highways status.  

     Trials a more efficient use of 
the Ward Highways Budget  

in 2023-24, reallocating it to 
establish a dedicated team  
that will have the flexibility to patch 
larger sections of road  
surface at a time, thereby delivering 
a longer lasting fix  
and better use of limited resources.  

Neil Ferris /  
 James 

Gilchrist  
  

Decision made at 20 July full council 
to suspend ward highway funding 
and spend on road repairs  

  

  
  

P
age 53



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer 
/ Executive 

Member  

Actions taken  Status  

20/07/23  Getting York 
Moving 
Fairly  

For the next four-year administration, 
Council asks the Executive  
to commit to:  

1. Look wherever possible to 
improve the cycle network,  
including better linking of villages  
2. Reverse the City Centre Blue 
Badge ban  
3. Rule out a Congestion Charge  
4. Address the stalled work on the 
dualling of the A1237 by  
working with stakeholders to deliver 
a scheme that meets the transport 
commitments within York’s Climate 
Change  
Strategy and the emerging Local 
Transport Plan.  
5. Calling on the new Mayoral 
Combined Authority, once  
established, to make taking back 
control of our buses a  
priority.  
  

Executive 
Members   

    

  
  

P
age 54



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer 
/ Executive 

Member  

Actions taken  Status  

20/07/23  A city 
response to 
Food 
Insecurity  

This council resolves to ask the Executive 
to:  

 write a letter to the Prime 
Minister and relevant ministers  

about the importance of introducing 
auto-enrolment for those entitled to 
free school meals;  

Executive 
Members /   
Martin Kelly / 

Maxine 
Squire / 
Pauline 

Stuchfield   

See below – auto-enrolment 
introduced.  

Completed  

     promote enrolment for free 
school meals to support children, 
young people and their families 
to help combat food  

insecurity and shortage in York;  

Martin Kelly / 
Maxine 
Squire / 
Pauline 

Stuchfield  
  

The CYC admissions team promote 
FSM support for children as do 
schools.  The scale up of auto 
enrolment is designed to ensure all 
those eligible receive the 
entitlement.  
  

Completed  

     encourage larger food 
providers in and around York to 
sign  

up to York’s Good Business 
Charter, including paying the  
Real Living Wage;  

Martin Kelly / 
Pauline 

Stuchfield  
  

Not started    

     work more closely with Parish 
Councils and groups like  

Edible York and YACIO (York 
Allotments Charitable  
Incorporated Organisation) to 
develop ideas for increasing  
the number of public green spaces 
available for food  
production by communities across 
York;  

Martin 
Kelly  / 
Pauline 

Stuchfield  
  

See below  Ongoing  

P
age 55



     request that the council’s 
scrutiny function undertakes a  

review of community food growing 
opportunities and makes  
recommendations to Executive to 
expand these  
opportunities, including considering 
the prospects for  
expanding an Edible York project in 
Tang Hall to other parts  
of the city to bring more underused 
gardens into use for food  
growing.  

Martin Kelly / 
Pauline 

Stuchfield  
  

Food Scrutiny review in progress  ongoing  

  
  

P
age 56



 

Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer / 
Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

21/09/23  Improving 
York’s Air 
Quality  

This Council resolves to request Executive:  
  urgently completes and consults 
on a draft Air Quality Action Plan 4 in 
parallel with the emerging draft Local 
Transport Plan 4, taking into account 
the Council’s Climate Change and 
Health and Well-being strategies given 
the significant inter-relationships for 
some key pollutants;  

Neil Ferris /   
James Gilchrist / 

Claire Foale / 
Shaun Gibbons   

Air Quality Action Plan 
4 has been drafted 
and has been 
considered at EPAT 
Scrutiny on 24 
October 2023 and will 
go into a period of 
consultation over the 
winter   

  

     includes within this work the WHO 
principle of progressively reducing 
average exposures to air pollution in 
York and to set its own interim WHO-
based targets for pollutants within the 
authority’s influence, such as PM10 
and NO2.  

Neil Ferris /   
James Gilchrist / 

Claire Foale / 
Shaun Gibbons  

  

Air Quality Action Plan 
4 has been drafted 
and has been 
considered at EPAT 
Scrutiny on 24 
October 2023 and will 
go into a period of 
consultation. This 
includes details on 
statutory targets as 
well as aiming towards 
WHO targets  

  

     ensures York prioritises actions that 
will end exceedances of the current 
English statutory air quality targets as 
soon as possible within the AQAP 4 
period;  

Neil Ferris /   
James Gilchrist / 

Claire Foale / 
Shaun Gibbons  

  

Political choice within 
the framework of 
emerging policies that 
officers will operate 
within. The 
consultation will inform 
future reports.  

  

P
age 57



     Works together with York and North 
Yorkshire Combined Authority and 
other counterparts to address regional 
sources of air pollution.  

Neil Ferris /   
James Gilchrist / 

Claire Foale / 
Shaun Gibbons  

  

Air Quality Action Plan 
4 has been drafted 
and has been 
considered at EPAT 
Scrutiny on 24 
October 2023 and will 
go into a period of 
consultation. Already 
work with them 
through the Yorkshire 
and Lincolnshire 
Pollution Advisory 
Group which includes 
Air Quality.  Part of the 
consultation on 
AQAP4 is to consult 
neighbouring 
authorities.  
  

  

    and Council resolves in writing, with copies to 
York’s MPs, to call for the Government to:  

 adopt site-specific targets with the 
aim of improving air quality in 
vulnerable locations such as schools, 
hospitals, care homes, sites of special 
scientific interest and similar other 
ecologically vulnerable sites;  

Neil Ferris /   
James Gilchrist / 

Claire Foale / 
Shaun Gibbons  

  

Executive/Political 
Assistant should be 
lobbying  

  

     address the shortcomings of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 
and Building regulations with respect 
to air pollution from buildings including 
construction projects, gas boilers, solid 
fuel fires and stoves, from poor 

Neil Ferris /   
James Gilchrist / 

Claire Foale / 
Shaun Gibbons  

  

Executive/Political 
Assistant should be 
lobbying  
  

  

P
age 58



ventilation of buildings and from the 
impact on air quality of transport 
emissions associated with new 
developments and from agricultural 
practices;  

     address the shortcomings in other 
legislation with regard to household 
furnishing, cleaning and other products 
used in residential and workplace 
settings which can adversely affect 
indoor air quality.  

Neil Ferris /   
James Gilchrist / 

Claire Foale / 
Shaun Gibbons  

  

Executive/Political 
Assistant should be 
lobbying  
  

  

  

P
age 59



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer / 
Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

21/09/23  Get me home 
safely  

Council resolves to  
 Fully support Unite's "Get me 
Home Safely" campaign;  

      

     Request that through the Purple 
Flag Working Group, officers work with 
partners to help implement the aims of 
this campaign;  

 Pauline 
Stuchfield James 

Gilchrist  
  

The BID now lead on 
Purple Flag. The Bid 
have recently access 
OPFCC funding to 
improve and light up 
some of the darkest 
alleyways to improve 
safety. Looking also at 
short messaging 
videos on people 
getting home safely  

Ongoing led 
by the Bid  

     Ask the Licensing Committee to 
undertake policy consultation work on 
encouraging licence holders to offer 
free transport to workers for getting 
home safely after 11pm, with a view to 
this recommendation being added 
under ‘Night-time safety’ provisions 
when the Statement of Licensing 
Policy is next reviewed;  

Executive 
Members  

   

    

     Support the introduction of legal 
requirements for training transport 
workers on preventing gender-based 
violence, sexual assault and 
harassment on public transport and 
private hire vehicles;  

Pauline 
StuchfieldJames 

Gilchrist   
  

Statement of Licensing 
Policy due to be 
reviewed this year – 
could make 
recommendations on 
‘night-time safety. 
Currently safeguarding 

Ongoing   

P
age 60



and equalities is 
included in taxi driver 
training prior to 
licensing. Licensed 
drivers must undertake 
refresher training 
every 3 years   

     Publicly call for improvement to late 
night and off-peak transport service 
provision to provide extra night 
services, as well as work with 
employers to discuss funding for 
supplementary taxi travel;  

Executive 
Members   

  

    

     Publicly call for the lowering of bus 
fares and opposition to any cuts to 
public transport funding and write to 
our two Members of Parliament to 
outline the Council’s support for the 
Get Me Home Safely campaign and 
ask them to use their positions to 
achieve these aims and resolutions;  

Executive 
Members   

  

    

     Publicly call for the municipal 
ownership of buses to be actively 
considered and lessons learned from 
the experience of other cities and 
regions, including the bus franchising 
systems being pursued by Labour 
Metro Mayors in West Yorkshire, 
Liverpool City Region and Greater 
Manchester, in order to lower prices 
and improve service provision, 
especially for night-time and off-peak 
services;  

Executive 
Members   

  

    

P
age 61



     Make representation to appropriate 
sub-regional and national government 
to bring forward national minimum 
standards for taxis and private hire, as 
per the recommendations of the 2018 
national Task and Finish Group, and in 
support of this motion and its demands 
on behalf of our local community.  

Executive 
Members  

  

    

  

P
age 62



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer / 
Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

23/11/23  Recognising 
and supporting 
York’s 
neurodivergent 
adults  
  
  

Council resolves:  
 To write to encourage the ICB to 
use the public engagement process to 
communicate more openly how the 
assessment pathway process works, 
the challenges with it and how 
information on outcomes could be 
provided for those completing the 
North Yorkshire and York online 
Platform for Adult Autism and ADHD 
Referral.  

  

Michael Melvin   ICB written to.  Completed.  

     To request an update report be 
presented to Health, Housing and 
Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee 
on the work of council services in 
supporting neurodivergent adults in 
York, including child to adult 
transitions.  

   
  

Michael Melvin   This work is currently 
ongoing.   

  

     To request that the Head of Paid 
Service communicates with all staff 
expressing the importance of removing 
barriers wherever possible, such that 
neurodivergent staff and residents are 
enabled to better access Council 
support and services.  

  

Ian Floyd /  
Michael Melvin   

  
  
  
  
  

Claire Foale   

To take an update 
report to Health, 
Housing and Adult 
Social Care Scrutiny 
Committee on the 
work of council 
services in supporting 
neurodivergent adults 

  

P
age 63



in York, including child 
to adult transitions.  
  
To include in weekly 
staff comms once  a 
date has been agreed 
to take to the Scrutiny 
Committee   

     To renew the city’s Autism Strategy 
and use this opportunity for City of 
York Council to reaffirm and widen the 
city’s commitment to autistic and 
neurodivergent people in York, 
learning from the challenges of the 
current NHS pilot to ensure there is 
meaningful engagement with local 
groups about how to improve support 
to meet the needs of neurodivergent 
residents accessing its services.  

  

Michael Melvin   Development of the 
Autism strategy has 
been agreed through 
CMT. Public Health 
are completing a 
Health Needs 
assessment between 
April and November. 
CYC and ICB officers 
are working in regards 
to the strategy 
throughout the Spring 
and Summer of 2024.  

  

     To ensure national Government is 
made aware of the perfect storm of 
increased demand for adult 
assessment, diagnosis and support for 
autism/ ADHD set against the 
backdrop of low levels of funding to 
support neurodiverse adults and to 
local authorities like City of York 
Council to provide the support they 
would like for their residents.  

  

Michael Melvin       

  

P
age 64



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer / 
Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

23.11.23 

 

The Fair 

Game 

campaign for 

football clubs  

Council resolves:  

 To declare its support for Fair Game, and 

call on other councils to join us in our 

support.   

      

     To ask the Chief Operating Officer to write 

to the Minister for Sport, local Members of 

Parliament, and the Chair of the Local 

Government Association Culture, Tourism 

and Sport Board, to lobby for the following 

to be included in the new remit of the 

Independent Regulator:  

o Football’s financial flow (particularly over: 

proportion of broadcast revenues given by 

the Premier League, the abolition of 

parachute payments, and the allocation of 

funds from the Premier League);   

o Owners’ and Directors’ Test to include an 

‘ethics’ dimension, particularly around 

human rights;   

o Implementation of a Fair Game Index to 

accurately measure club’s progress;  

o To include National League North and 

South clubs under their control;   

Ian Floyd   

 

Letter sent 22.01.24. 

Closed.    

 

Closed 

P
age 65



o To have stronger powers to implement 

and enforce governance; and   

o Measurement of equality standards and 

environmental standards.   

     To ask the council’s Children, 
Culture and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee to discuss at a meeting in 
the current municipal year the 
important role that York City Football 
Club plays in the culture and heritage 
of the city and to explore ways in which 
we can work together to support the 
club and York City Football Club 
Foundation with its work in the local 
community.  

  

Martin Kelly   Completed in April 
2024  

completed  

  

P
age 66



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer / 
Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

23.11.23  Working to 
improve 
Mental Health  
  

Council resolves to:  
 express its disappointment at the 
shelving of planned reforms to the 
Mental Health Act in the recent King’s 
Speech, reforms designed to address 
amongst other issues, the 
inappropriate detention of different 
groups of people against their will.  

  

Michael Melvin   These issues are now 
raised, through the 
York Mental Health 
Partnership, with 
partners within York 
who will take forward 
through a system 
approach.   

Ongoing.  

     call on relevant bodies and 
stakeholders to support preventative 
mental health measures, such as 
mental health support for children and 
young people and support for 
counselling services that take into 
account cost of living pressures.  
  

Michael Melvin   These issues are now 
raised, through the 
York Mental Health 
Partnership, with 
partners within York 
who will take forward 
through a system 
approach.   

Ongoing.  

     work with local healthcare partners 
to encourage them to ensure patients 
have a holistic triage on admission with 
a mandatory Safety Plan on return to 
the community.  

  

Michael Melvin   These issues are now 
raised, through the 
York Mental Health 
Partnership, with 
partners within York 
who will take forward 
through a system 
approach.   

Ongoing.  

     work with health partners to end out 
of area transfers where practical so 
that mental health patients are 
supported as close to home as 
possible.  

Michael Melvin  These issues are now 
raised, through the 
York Mental Health 
Partnership, with 
partners within York 

Ongoing.  

P
age 67



  who will take forward 
through a system 
approach.   

     explore how it can support and 
build on the work of York Ending 
Stigma (YES - 
https://www.yorkcvs.org.uk/york-
ending-stigma/) to reduce stigma and 
improve attitudes on mental health 
issues in both its staff and the 
residents it serves.  

  

Michael Melvin   These issues are now 
raised, through the 
York Mental Health 
Partnership, with 
partners within York 
who will take forward 
through a system 
approach.   

Ongoing.  

     ask that relevant council officers, 
the Executive Member for Health, 
Wellbeing and Adult Social care and 
commissioned services consult fully 
with mental health charities and 
service users when planning changes 
to mental health support services.  
  

Michael Melvin  These issues are now 
raised, through the 
York Mental Health 
Partnership, with 
partners within York 
who will take forward 
through a system 
approach.   

Ongoing.  

     Encourage all members of the 
Council to support the Movember 
campaign to raise funds for men’s 
mental health.  

Michael Melvin   Campaign has been 
undertaken.  

Completed.  

  

P
age 68

https://www.yorkcvs.org.uk/york-ending-stigma/
https://www.yorkcvs.org.uk/york-ending-stigma/


Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer / 
Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

23.11.23  Withdrawal of 
the Public 
Switched 
Telephone 
Network  
  

Council resolves:  
   

 To ask the Corporate Services, 
Climate Change and Scrutiny 
Management Committee to include as 
an agenda item at a meeting of that 
committee or another scrutiny 
committee in the next three months, 
consideration of York’s level of 
preparedness for this change. 
Participants in the discussion could 
include local authority, telecoms, NHS, 
care, voluntary sector and other 
partners as appropriate.  

  

Pauline 
Stuchfield  

  Completed  

     To ask the relevant Executive 
Members to ensure that all front-line 
staff working with groups who may be 
particularly affected by this change are 
suitably briefed in order to be able to 
direct residents and their 
families/carers to sources of 
information and support.  
  

Pauline 
Stuchfield  

  In Progress 

  

P
age 69



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer / 
Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

21.3.24  Making York a 
Trauma 
Informed City  

Council resolves:  
  To take steps to become a 
Trauma-Informed City and commits to 
working in partnership to embed 
Trauma-Informed frameworks across 
services and partner agencies, working 
in co-production with trauma 
survivors;  

      

     To ask the Executive Member for 
Health, Wellbeing and Adult Social 
Care and Executive colleagues to 
explore the introduction of a Trauma-
Informed framework across Council 
services;  

      

     To request the Executive Member 
for Health, Wellbeing and Adult Social 
Care explore the introduction of 
training for staff and councillors, 
including e-learning modules, that 
enables City of York Council to 
become a Trauma-Informed 
organisation;  

  Pilot of in house 
training being held in 
June 2024 with cohort 
of customer and 
housing officers and 
CMT  

  

     To work with partner organisations 
to implement a city-wide approach to 
raising awareness of the impact of 
trauma and how becoming Trauma-
Informed can help to support trauma 
survivors;  

      

     To consider the implications of 
making it a requirement in 

      

P
age 70



commissioned contracts and services 
that partner organisations can 
demonstrate they have, or are 
implementing, a Trauma-Informed 
framework;  

     To recommend the Health, Housing 
and Adult Social Care Scrutiny 
Committee request a report from 
TEWV NHS Trust on its prior 
application and progress in moving 
beyond the use of the BPD+ protocol, 
an assessment of current staff 
understanding and the outlining of any 
trauma-informed approaches it is 
implementing.  

      

  

P
age 71



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer / 
Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

21.3.24  Safeguarding 
future library 
provision  

Council resolves:  
 To ask the relevant Executive 
Member and council officers to 
continue engaging proactively in the 
next three months with York Explore, 
service users and, through Scrutiny, 
elected members of all parties in order 
to ensure that future library provision in 
York continues to meet residents’ 
needs and expectations, including 
reforming the mobile library service 
and retaining the number of staffed 
libraries and library services, including 
to outlying areas not covered by 
Gateway or Explore libraries across 
the city;  

  

Pauline 
Stuchfield 

   In Progress 

     To request the Executive Member 
for Health, Wellbeing and Adult Social 
Care and the Leader of the Council 
write to the Department for Culture, 
Media and Sport, and the Arts Council, 
to clarify the council’s financial position 
and to reassure them of the council’s 
commitment to York’s libraries and 
archives.  

  

    In Progress 

  

P
age 72



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer / 
Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

21.3.24  Affordable 
Housing 
Motion  

Council resolves:  
• That following adoption of York’s Local Plan, the 

relevant  
officers, scrutiny and executive should examine 

examples  
elsewhere in the country that seek to make 

housing more  
affordable for their residents, including through 

any powers  
available at Mayoral Combined Authority level;  

Alison Cooke / 
Andrew 

Beddington  

  Live 

     This should include consideration 
of broadening the affordable housing 
criteria to include residents paying no 
more than a set percentage of their 
incomes in mortgages. It should also 
compare such an approach with 
existing council policy of homes for 
sale valued at a more traditional 
reduced level of market value, arising 
from s106 developer contributions;  

      

     Further, to request Executive 
reviews the council’s policy on 
developer social housing contributions, 
with an assessment of whether adding 
new council homes through this 
mechanism would improve the supply 
and quality of nationally-defined 
affordable homes to York residents.  

      

  

P
age 73



Council 
Meeting  

Motion   Resolutions  Lead Officer / 
Executive 
Member  

Actions taken  Status  

21.3.24  My Vote, My 
Voice  

Council resolves to request the Returning 
Officer:  

 considers the city’s polling stations 
for any accessibility  

           improvements;  
 considers how greater awareness 
of voting rights through social media 
activity can be advanced, particularly 
for hard-to-reach groups;  
  provides as much detail as 
possible on the different roles for which 
individuals stand for election, to 
encourage greater voter participation, 
subject to relevant legislation.  

  Comprehensive 
comms plan underway 
including radio, leaflet 

door drop, media 
releases/press, social 

and targeted social 
delivered in 

partnership with NYC  

  

    And requests the Chief Operating Officer write to 
the relevant Minister within the Department for 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities on:  

 ways to make registering to vote 
easier, while maintaining the integrity 
of the electoral process, in order to 
increase voter participation.  

      

  
 

P
age 74



 

 

 

  
 

   

 

Corporate Services, Climate Change and 
Scrutiny Management Committee 

 

    13 May 2024 

Report of the Director of Governance  
 
Schedule of Petitions 

 

Summary 
 
1. Members of this Committee are aware of their role in the consideration 

of petitions received by the Council. The Committee last received an 
updated schedule of petitions in November 2023.  In accordance with 
the Council’s Petitions Scheme and Council Standing Orders, the 
Committee in invited to scrutinise any actions taken in relation to 
petitions received and to consider any next steps such as may be 
appropriate.  

 
Background 
 
2. The Council formally adopted its Petitions Scheme at its meeting in 

March 2022, covering both paper and e petitions. For information 
purposes, that Scheme is attached at Annex A.  The Scheme provides 
that petitions will be referred to this Committee for consideration, and 
historically the most opportune time for this is when actions by the 
relevant Directorate are finalised (e.g., to refer to an Executive Member 
for decision on any actions).  In that way, the Committee can 
reasonably review whether the proposed action represented a 
satisfactory way in which to deal with each petition received. 
 

Current Petitions Update 
 
3. Annex B provides a list of all petitions recorded as received by the 

Council since the last report to this Committee in November 2023, 
together with details of any relevant progress and/or actions since then.  

 
Process 
 
4. Members are reminded that the role of this Committee is not to 

determine any specific actions to be taken in relation to petitions but 

Page 75 Agenda Item 6



 

rather to monitor the progress of their consideration and the 
appropriateness of any actions planned or taken by the decision maker. 

 
5. The Council’s Petition Scheme (Annex A attached) is set out at 

Appendix 2 of the Constitution.  Paragraph 5.2 states: 
 

“Paper petitions handed in to a Ward Councillor are normally presented 
at Full Council and then passed to a senior officer within the relevant 
Directorate and referred to the Customer and Corporate Services 
Scrutiny Management Committee. Those that come directly into the 
Council Offices are also referred to the Customer and Corporate 
Services Scrutiny Management Committee.” 
 

Options 
 
6. The Scheme sets out the options available to this Committee in 

reviewing petitions at paragraph 8.2 as follows: 
 

a) Requesting a detailed report on the issues; 
b) Noting receipt of the petition and proposed action; 
c) Requiring the Executive Member or person taking any decisions 

on the matter to attend a meeting and answer questions; 
d) Undertaking a detailed scrutiny review, gathering evidence, 

hearing from witnesses and making recommendations to the 
appropriate person or Member making the decisions; or 

e) Referring the matter to Full Council for debate according to the 
significance of the issues. 

  
7. Under paragraph 8.3, the Committee may call for reports and undertake 

reviews in relation to petitions where it is concerned that they have not 
been dealt with properly. 

 
 

Consultation 
 
8. All Councillors were involved in the decision making around the existing 

Petitions Scheme, given that it was subject to Full Council approval for 
inclusion in its Constitution. Relevant Directorates are involved in the 
preparation of the schedule of petitions and actions compiled at Annex 
B. 
 

Implications 
 
9. There are no known legal, financial, human resources or other 

implications directly associated with the recommendations in this report.  
However, depending upon what, if any, further actions Members agree 

Page 76



 

to in respect of individual petitions there may, of course, be specific 
implications for resources which would need to be addressed. 

 
Risk Management 
 
10. There are no known risk implications associated with the 

recommendations in this report. Members should, however, be aware of 
the reputational risk to the Council if it fails to ensure appropriate 
consideration is given to petitions from the public.     

 
Recommendations 

 

11. Members are asked to: 
 

(i) Note the schedule of petitions recorded since November 2023; 
 

(ii) Review the petitions and actions planned or taken and identify 
any further actions they consider necessary or appropriate in line 
with the options available under the Council’s Petitions Scheme, 
as set out at paragraphs 6 and 7 above. 

 
Reason: To ensure the Committee carries out its constitutional role in 

relation to petitions. 
  

Contact Details: 
 
Author: 
 
Dawn Steel 
Democratic Services Team 
Leader 

Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 
Bryn Roberts 
Director of Governance 
Bryn.roberts@york.gov.uk 

dawn.steel@york.gov.uk  

Report Approved  Date 
 

01/5/2024 
 

Wards Affected: All  

 
Background Papers: None 
 
Annexes: 
  
Annex A – Appendix 2 of Council Constitution – Petitions Scheme 
 
Annex B – Schedule of petitions received since May 2023 

Page 77

mailto:dawn.steel@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Constitution 
Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 
Reviewed: May 2022 

 
 

Appendix 2 - Petitions Scheme 

 

1     City of York Council is committed to involving local people in its 

decision making. For some years, it has been operating a public 

participation scheme enabling members of the public to attend 

meetings and speak on an issue. It has also responded to petitions 

from the public, received in an number of ways e.g. through a Ward 

Councillor submitting a petition on behalf of a constituent or by a 

resident submitting one direct to a council office by post/hand. As 

part of its approach to petitions, the Council has also introduced an 

ePetitions facility, providing another way in which a particular issue 

can be brought to the attention of Councillors. 

 

2     Through this Petitions Scheme, the Council is making a commitment 

to: 

• Enable anyone who lives, work or studies in the local 

authority area to organise and submit a petition either on 

paper or electronically 

• Respond to the concerns raised within a petition 

• Review its handling of a petition where a lead petitioner 

believes it has not been dealt with in accordance with this 

scheme. 

 

3        To support the scheme, the Council has: 

•  Set a low threshold of ten signatures on the number of 

petitioners to enable as many valid local opinions to be heard 

as possible 

•  Provided an ePetitions facility to enable those who want to, to 

create their petition on line and allow others to sign it 

electronically 

 

 

Page 79

melleja_6
Text Box
Annex A


melleja_7
Text Box



City of York Council Constitution 
Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 
Reviewed: May 2022 

 
 

4        Petitions Not Covered By This Scheme 

 

4.1     This scheme does not cover petitions which: 

a) Relate to a planning or licensing application – in this case a 

petition will be referred to the relevant decision maker 

b) Relate to matters where there is a legal right to seek a review 

or appeal  

c) Respond to a public consultation organised by the Council – 

in this case a petition will be referred to the decision maker 

d) Relate to matters which are of a defamatory or discriminatory 

nature, personal attacks on identifiable individuals or 

disclosure of confidential or personal information, particularly 

where appropriate the lead petitioner will be directed to the 

most appropriate route for raising such concerns with the 

Council. 

e) The Council’s Monitoring Officer, acting in consultation with 

the Chief Operating Officer, considers to be vexatious i.e. a 

petition with insufficient substance to merit action and the use 

effective use of public resource, abusive or otherwise 

inappropriate 

 

4.2     In addition to these rules where a petition has resulted in a debate 

at a meeting of Full Council, the Council will not hold a further 

debate in response to a petition which the Lord Mayor considers 

to be substantially similar within a period of two years. 

 

4.3      During the period leading up to a local or national election the 
Council may temporarily suspend the hosting of e-petitions or 
delay holding debates.  

 
 
 

Page 80



City of York Council Constitution 
Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 
Reviewed: May 2022 

 
 

 
5        Submitting a Petition 
 
           Paper Petitions 

5.1      Paper petitions can be submitted via a number of routes e.g. via a 

Ward Councillor, by post or hand delivered to the Council Offices. 

5.2      Paper petitions handed in to a Ward Councillor are normally 

presented at Full Council and then passed to a senior officer 

within the relevant Directorate and referred to the Customer and 

Corporate Services Scrutiny Management Committee. Those that 

come directly into the Council Offices are also referred to the 

Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management 

Committee. 

 

5.3     Paper petitions should contain the details of the petition on the 

front of each sheet so that it is clear that each signatory has 

responded to identical wording. 

 

6        ePetitions 

 

6.1     All ePetitions submitted to the Council must: 

a) Include a clear and concise statement covering the 
subject of the Petition. 

b) State what action the petitioners wish the Council to take.   
 

6.2     The ePetition organiser will need to provide us with their name, 

postal address including postcode, email address and contact 

telephone number. The name of the petition organiser (but no 

other contact details) will be published alongside details of the 

petition.  

 

6.3     The ePetition organiser will also need to decide how long their 

petition will be open for signatures. Most ePetitions run for six 

months, but it can be a shorter or longer timeframe, up to a 

Page 81



City of York Council Constitution 
Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 
Reviewed: May 2022 

 
 

maximum of 12 months. 

 

6.4     When an ePetition is created, it may take up to five working days 

before it is published online. This is because we have to check 

that the content of the ePetition meets the guidelines before it is 

made available for signature. 

 

6.5     The relevant Executive Member will be advised of the publication 

of any e-petition relating to their service area. 

 

6.6      If a petition does not follow the guidelines set out above, or if we 

need clarification on any issues raised within an ePetition, we will 

contact the ePetition organiser within 5 working days of receipt to 

explain.  

 

6.7     We will also contact the ePetition organiser if we feel we cannot 
publish an ePetition for any reason, and where possible, we will 
offer assistance to change and resubmit it.  

 

6.8      If the required clarification is not provided, or if an ePetition that 

we cannot publish is not re-submitted within 14 days, a summary 

of the ePetition and the reason why it has not been accepted will 

be published under the ‘rejected petitions’ section of the Council’s 

ePetitions facility. 

 

7         How to ‘sign’ an ePetition 

 

7.1      An individual wanting to sign an ePetition, will be asked to provide 

their name, address and postcode, plus a valid email address. 

They will then receive an email containing a link which they must 

click on in order to confirm their email address is valid. Once this 

step is completed their ‘signature’ will be added to the ePetition. 

Page 82



City of York Council Constitution 
Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 
Reviewed: May 2022 

 
 

NB: Anyone viewing an e-petition will only be able to see the 

names of those who have signed - no contact details will be 

visible. 

7.2      All ePetitions currently available for signature on the Council’s 

website can be viewed at: 

http://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgePetitionListDisplay.aspx?bcr=1 

 

8        How will the Council respond? 

 

8.1     Within 5 days of a petition being received or of an ePetition being 

closed to signatories, we will send acknowledgement to the 

petition organiser, providing information on when they can expect 

to hear from us again and what process needs to be followed. 

 

8.2     Our response will depend on what the petition/ePetition asks for 

and how many people have signed it but details of the petition will 

be referred to our Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 

Management Committee (CCSMC) who may decide a range of 

potential actions, including: 

a) Requesting a detailed report on the issues; 

b) Noting receipt of the petition and proposed action; 

c) Requiring the Executive Member or person taking any 

decisions on the matter to attend a meeting and answer 

questions; 

d) Undertaking a detailed scrutiny review, gathering 

evidence, hearing from witnesses and making 

recommendations to the appropriate person or Member 

making the decisions; 

e) Referring the matter to Full Council for debate according 

to the significance of the issues  

8.3     CCSMC will have the right to call for reports and undertake 

reviews in relation to petitions where it is concerned that they 

have not been dealt with properly. 

 

Page 83

http://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgePetitionListDisplay.aspx?bcr=1


City of York Council Constitution 
Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 2: Petitions Scheme 
Reviewed: May 2022 

 
 

8.4     The relevant Executive Member may also be required to consider 

the petition to agree appropriate actions, depending upon the 

issues raised. 

 

8.5     If the petition relates to an operational Highways matter, for 

example a traffic regulation order or Respark, it will be referred 

directly to the relevant Executive Member and will not be 

considered by CCSMC. 

8.6     If the petition/ePetition is about something over which the council 

has no direct control e.g. the local railway or hospital, we may 

refer it to the Council’s relevant partner organisation, and where 

appropriate, may work with them to respond to the petition. 

 

9         Getting Involved When Your Petition Is Considered 

 

9.1      A petitioner may choose to attend any meeting where their 

petition/ePetition is to be considered to listen to the debate, or 

register to speak at the meeting via the Council’s Public 

Participation Scheme. This scheme enables participants to 

address Councillors before they debate the issues raised. 

 

10       What happens next? 

 

10.1    The petition/ePetition organiser will receive notification of the 

outcome of their petition. Where a petition/ePetition has been 

considered at a public meeting, information on the related 

decisions will be made available electronically via the meeting 

minutes published online. It will also be possible to track the 

implementation of any actions arising from them, via the online 

committee management system. 

 

 

Page 84



Annex B 

Petitions Schedule, May 2023 ongoing 

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

191.  Improve Road 
Safety – Hopgrove, 
York A1036 Malton 
Road 

101 signatures 

E-petition 
sent via email 
received 10 
May from 
Kelly Dunn 

Dave Atkinson Executive 
Member for 
Economy and 
Transport 

12.09.23  Resolved:  More detailed 

work on measure was 

requested and would be 

considered as part of the 

Transport Capital Programme 

in 2024/25. 

Closed 

192.  Requesting the 
setting up of 
“Resident’s only 
parking” in Farrar 
Street, York, YO10 
3BZ 

42 signatures 

Petition 
handed in 
8.6.23 by Cllr 
Whitcroft on 
behalf of lead 
petitioner 
Robert 
Purnell. 

Darren Hobson Executive 
Member for 
Economy and 
Transport 

12.09.23  Resolved:  That the addition 

of this area to the residents 

parking waiting list was 

approved and the extent of 

the potential consultation 

area was considered when it 

reaches the top of the list. 

Closed 

193.  Removal of 
Race Day Barriers on 
the Junctions of 
Albermarle and Count 
de Burgh with Queen 
Victoria Street in 
Southbank.  

76 signatures 

Paper hard 
copy handed 
in 15.07.23 
by John 
Young via Cllr 
Fenton. 

Darren Hobson Executive 
Member for 
Economy and 
Transport 

12.09.23  Resolved:  Note the Council 

would engage with residents 

and Ward Councillors to 

review traffic management in 

the area ahead of the next 

race season. 

Closed 

P
age 85



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

194.  Front Street 
Regeneration Project 
Petition - Get Front St 
bollards removed and 
redesign the scheme 
in line with what 
people asked for 

1021 signatures 

Hard copy 
presented at 
Full Council 
by Vicki Hill 
and 
supported by 
Cllr Nelson.  

Kathryn Daly / 
Simon Brereton 

Executive  

(Reference in 

UKSPF report) 

 

12.10.23 EMDS Economy & 

Transport – 20 

February 2024 – 

Resolved: That 

open public 

engagement on the 

Acomb Front Street 

Phase 2 project 

approach be 

approved in order to 

test costed designs 

and ideas for the 

scheme and receive 

feedback. – present 

full costed scheme 

to Executive for 

consideration and 

approval to proceed 

in Summer 2024. 

 

Executive Resolved: b.  High 

street improvement funding 

on intervention E1 is 

allocated to Phase 2 

improvement to Acomb Front 

Street, including further 

engagement with the local 

community to respond to the 

petitioners’ concerns to allow 

completion of the Acomb 

Front Street works and 

maximise impact and 

deliverability. 

Closed 

195. Osbaldwick 
Sports Club s106 
Funding.  

125 signatures 

ePetition – 
Cllr M 
Warters. 

Becky Eades Executive 
Member for 
Housing, 
Planning & 
Safer 
Communities 
(inc Local 
Plan) 

16.10.23 Report to be taken 

to EMDS Decision 

Session – date to 

be advised. 

Petition Acknowledged Open 

P
age 86



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

196.  Additional 
Parking bays needed 
St Stephen’s Road – 
We the undersigned 
ask that as part of the 
local estate 
improvements that an 
additional parking bay 
is provided for the 
section of St 
Stephen’s Road 
including the block 86 
o 104 St Stephen’s 
Road to provide 
sufficient parking 
spaces for residents.  
We would welcome 
the utilisation of eco-
grid parking materials 
as used nearby in St 
Stephen’s Square. 

15 signatures 

Hard copy of 
the petition 
presented by 
Cllr Andrew 
Waller to 
CSMC on 16 
October. 

James Gilchrist/ 
Michael Howard/ 
Helen Vergereau 

Executive 
Member for 
Economy and 
Transport. 

16/10/23 To be considered 

as part of annual 

review as parking 

restrictions not 

being 

recommended for 

implementation. 

 

On the forward 

pland for Decision 

by Economy and 

Transport Executive 

Member on 21 May 

2024 under 

Consideration of 

representations 

received for Annual 

Review of TRO 

requests. 

Petition acknowledged Open 

197.  Opposing cuts to 
the Ward Committee 
Budgets 

 

Presented at 
Full Council 
on 21 
September by 
Cllr Hollyer 

 

Pauline Stuchfield/ 
Laura Williams 

EM Members 
for Housing, 
Planning and 
Safer 
Communities 
Finance, 
Performance, 
Major Projects 
and Equalities 

09/11/23  Petition was taken into 

consideration by Full Council 

when discussing the 

Council’s Financial Strategy 

2024/25 to 2028/29 item. 

Closed 

P
age 87



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

198.  We, the 
undersigned, call upon 
the City of York 
Council to use the 
Chapelfields Estate 
Improvement funds for 
more dropped kerbs 
on gritting, and bus 
routes in the estate, 
and to develop an 
estate improvement 
plan 

38 signatures 

Presented to 
Full Council 
on 23 
November 
2023 by Cllr 
Waller. 

Michael Jones / 
Sophie Round 

Executive 
Member for 
Housing, 
Planning and 
Safer 
Communities 

23/11/23 Report to be taken 

to EMDS Decision 

Session – date to 

be advised. 

Not enough tenants 

responded to allow us to 

undertake a programme of 

works, as per the HEIP 

criteria.  

 

Open 

199.  We, the 
undersigned call upon 
the City of York 
Council to use the 
Westfield Ward 
funding allocated to 
improve parking in the 
Ascot Way area. 

24 signatures 

Presented to 
Full Council 
on 23 
November by 
Cllr Waller. 

Pauline Stuchfield 
/ Laura Williams 

EM Members 
for Housing, 
Planning and 
Safer 
Communities 
Finance, 
Performance, 
Major Projects 
and Equalities 
 

23/11/23  A number of schemes were 

proposed in this area, some 

were completed, some were 

technically not feasible, and 

others were not taken forward 

by Members following 

consultation. 

 

Closed  

P
age 88



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

200.  We, the 
undersigned call upon 
the City of York 
Council to use the 
Westfield Ward 
funding allocated to 
improve parking the 
area around the flats 
on Askham Lane. 

10 signatures 

Presented to 
Full Council 
on 23 
November 
2023 by Cllr 
Waller. 

Pauline Stuchfield 
/ Laura Willliams 

EM Members 
for Housing, 
Planning and 
Safer 
Communities 
Finance, 
Performance, 
Major Projects 
and Equalities 

23/11/23  One project was completed, 

the follow up project was 

turned down following a road 

safety audit, and the final 

project did not ahead due to 

concerns from the ward 

members about potential 

resident reaction. 

 

Closed  

P
age 89



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

201.  Residents of 
Dijon Avenue and 
Lowfields Drive have 
experienced 
construction traffic for 
5 years, with the 
damage that has 
happened to roads, 
verges and 
pavements.  We call 
upon the Council to: 
(1) use the ward 
funding allocated to 
improve parking and 
access in the area  (2)  
Make good the 
damage that has been 
done to Dijon Avenue, 
and to resurface 
Lowfield Drive (3)  
Deliver the promised 
report on a timetable 
to get this work done, 
and to clarify what will 
happen to the 
remaining empty plots 
on Lowfield Green. 

84 signatures 

Presented to 
Full Council 
on 23 
November 
2023 by Cllr. 
Waller. 

Pauline 
Stuchfield/Laura 
Williams 
 
Michael Jones 

EM Members 
for Housing, 
Planning and 
Safer 
Communities 
Finance, 
Performance, 
Major Projects 
and Equalities 

23/11/23  A project for parking bays 

near the junction with Green 

lane could not go ahead due 

to insufficient width in the 

verge. alternative parking 

locations were considered but 

could not go ahead due to 

utilities present in verges. 

There was an intention to 

investigate parking 

improvements with off street 

parking in the front gardens of 

some CYC properties as part 

of a 23-27 programme. 

 

Closed  

P
age 90



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

202.  We call on City 
of York Council to 
Pedestrianise 
Fossgate! 

1675 signatures 

Presented to 
Full Council 
on 23 
November by 
Cllr. Clarke. 

James Gilchrist / 
Michael Howard 

Executive 
Member for 
Economy and 
Transport 

23/11/23  12/03/24 by Decision Session 

- Executive Member for 

Economy and Transport  

No further action 

Closed 

203. We, the 
undersigned, call on 
City of York Council 
and York Museums 
Trust to find a way of 
extending the opening 
times of Museum 
Gardens to enable 
access to and through 
the Gardens from 
earlier in the morning 
until later in the 
evening, particularly in 
the summer months (if 
necessary working 
with other city 
partners). 

139 signatures 

Hard copy 
submitted at 
Decision 
Session of 
EM for 
Health, 
Wellbeing 
and Adult 
Social Care 
17 January 
2024, and by 
email to 
Democratic 
Services. 

Laura Williams/ 
Andrew Laslett 

EM Members 
for Housing, 
Planning and 
Safer 
Communities 
and Health, 
Wellbeing and 
Adult Social 
Care 

17/01/24 Andy Laslett (AL) to 

write to YMT 

Kathryn Blacker 

CEO to seek a 

response. 

 

2.2.24 – AL received a 

response from YMT.  

 

Written response going back 

to Denise by YMT direct. 

Copy seen and approved by 

Laura Williams. 

Closed 

P
age 91



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

204. We the 
undersigned petition 
the council to carry out 
a review of road safety 
around Fishergate 
Primary School. The 
review should 
recommend 
improvements to road 
design so that children 
feel safe when they 
walk or cycle to 
school. City of York 
Council will need to 
identify funding for the 
improvements 
identified by the 
review. 

184 signatures 

EPetition Michael Howard 
and James 
Gilchrist. 

Executive 
Member for 
Economy & 
Transport 

18.01.24  Petition Acknowledged  

 

On Forward Plan to be taken 

to Executive Member for 

Economy and Place Decision 

Session. 

Open 

P
age 92



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

205.  Proposed 
Changes to 13 Bus 
Route in 
Copmanthorpe/results 
of a local petition to 
save the ‘Flaxman 
Loop’. 

415 signatures 

Hard Copy by 
Lead 
Petitioner 
Stephen Lock 
22.01.24 
presented to 
officers. 

Joanne 
Waddington / 
Michael Howard 

Executive 

Reference – 

Local Bus 

Service 

Updates report 

 

22/01/24  Local Bus Service Update – 

Executive 20 February 2024 

– 

The Executive Member for 

Transport acknowledged that 

the loss of routes such as 

Flaxman Court would 

negatively affect residents but 

that the subsidies were not 

enough to continue running 

the route and welcomed 

cross party work into 

alternatives such as Dail and 

Ride. Finally he noted that 

proposals to meet the 

Council’s target of increased 

patronage and lower 

congestion would come as 

part of the Local Transport 

Plan. 

Closed 

P
age 93



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

206. Repair our 
pothole in Front Street 

65 signatures 

Hard copy 
submitted by 
Cllr Waller, 
presented to 
officers. 

James Gilchrist / 
David Warburton 

Executive 

Member for 

Economy and 

Transport 

Reference – 
Acomb Front 
Street Phase 2 

20.02.24  EMDS Economy & Transport 

– 20 February 2024 – report 

detailed it’s is a sunk utility 

reinstatement, we can only 

hold utility contractors to 

account for 2 years. This has 

been inspected and does not 

meet intervention levels 

Resolved: That open public 

engagement on the Acomb 

Front Street Phase 2 project 

approach be approved in 

order to test costed designs 

and ideas for the scheme and 

receive feedback. – present 

full costed scheme to 

Executive for consideration 

and approval to proceed in 

Summer 2024. 

Closed 

P
age 94



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

207.  Residents of 
Murton Way with 
frontages onto the 
section of road 
between Osbaldwick 
Link Road and Tranby 
Avenue fully agree 
that the problem 
parking associated 
with a business on 
Outgang Lane needs 
to be stopped …. 

8 signatures 

 

Hard copy 
submitted by 
Cllr. Warters 
presented at 
the Executive 
Member for 
Economy and 
Transport 
Decision 
Session. 

James Gilchrist 
Darren Hobson 

Executive 

Member for 

Economy and 

Transport 

 

22.02.24  Lead Petitioner advised the 

petition itself does not meet 

the threshold of 10 

signatures. 

 

Published on the Forward 

Plan for consideration of as 

part of the Annual Review 

TRO Objections report  at 21 

May 2024 Decision Session. 

Open 

P
age 95



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

208.  We petition City 
of York Council & N 
Yorks Combined 
Authority to reduce 
traffic harm by 
adopting the Vision 
Zero target of zero 
filled or serious road 
injuries by 20230, with 
an intermediate target 
of 50% fewer 
vulnerable road user 
KSI’s by 2027.  We 
call for Safe Systems 
and traffic reduction; 
key is a 20mph default 
limit in built -up areas 
across the region and 
speed reduction on all 
road classes, including 
arterials where people 
are.  

210 hard copy;190 on-
line signatures 

Hard Copy 
presented by 
Anna 
Semlyen, 20 
is Plenty to 
Executive on 
20 February 
24. 

James Gilchrist/ 
Michael Howard 

Executive 
Member for 
Economy and 
Transport 

20/02/24 Petition was 

presented at 

Executive and 

addressed agenda 

item on the Local 

Transport Strategy 

report.  The petition 

will be considered 

when Executive 

next consider the 

next Local 

Transport Strategy 

report 

Report acknowledged Open 

209.  Petition objecting 
to the proposed Green 
Bin Charges 

2283 signatures 

Presented by 
Cllr Hollyer at 
Budget 
Council 22 
February 
2024. 

Debbie Mitchell Executive 
recommendati
ons to Full 
Council 

22.02.24  Petition was taken into 

consideration by Full Council 

when discussing the 

Council’s Financial Strategy 

2024/25 to 2028/29 item. 

Closed 

P
age 96



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

210.  Petition objecting 
to the proposed 
reduction in funding to 
York Explore 

3246 signatures 

Presented by 
Cllr Hollyer at 
Budget 
Council 22 
February 
2024. 

Debbie Mitchell Executive 
recommendati
ons to Full 
Council 

22.02.24  Petition was taken into 

consideration by Full Council 

when discussing the 

Council’s Financial Strategy 

2024/25 to 2028/29 item. 

Closed 

P
age 97



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

211. Tranby Avenue 
Parking Problems 

We the undersigned 
petition the council to 
deal with the 
dangerous and 
inconsiderate 
University related 
parking in Tranby 
Avenue and 
Cavendish Grove in 
Osbaldwick and 
Murton. 

We the undersigned 
call upon City of York 
Council as Highway 
Authority to stop the 
University related 
parking issues 
compromising 
highway safety and 
residential amenity on 
Tranby Avenue and 
Cavendish Grove, 
Osbaldwick and 
Murton. 

165 signatures 

ePetition and 
presented by 
Cllr Warters 
at Full 
Council on 21 
March 2024 

James Gilchrist Executive 
Member 
Economy & 
Transport 

21/03/24 Issues to be 

considered in future 

report to Exec 

Member for 

Economy and 

Transport 

 Open 

P
age 98



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

212. Reduce HMO 
Thresholds  

We the undersigned 
petition the council to 
reduce the HMO 
acceptability 
thresholds permitting 
the conversion of 
further HMOs. 

80 signatures 

ePetition and 
presented by 
Cllr Warters 
at Full 
Council on 21 
March 2024 

Tracey 
Carter/Alison 
Cooke 

Executive 
Member 
Housing, 
Planning and 
Safer 
Communities 

21/03/24 Petition 

acknowledged 

9/4/24.  Action will 

be considered as 

part of a report to 

Executive on 

Supplementary 

Planning 

Documents (SPD’s) 

for the Local Plan in 

June 2024 

 Open 

213. Resurface 
Foxwood Lane  

We the undersigned, 
in the light of repeated 
deep pothole repairs, 
request that Foxwood 
Lane is resurfaced 
between the junctions 
with Huntsman’s Walk 
and Askham Lane to 
complete the 
resurfacing which has 
been done in the 
section leading from 
Gale Lane to 
Huntsman’s Walk.  

196 signatures 

Presented by 
Cllr Waller at 
Full Council 
on 21 March 
2024 

 

Additional 
signatures 
provided by 
Cllr Waller 
19/4/24 

Steve Wragg 
 

Executive 
Member 
Economy & 
Transport 

21/03/24 Will be considered 

at a future 

Executive Member 

for Economy and 

Transport Decision 

Session 

Petition Acknowledged   Open P
age 99



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

214. Resurface Corlett 
Court 

We the undersigned 
request the 
resurfacing of Corlett 
Court road surface 
following the 
increasing number of 
potholes, to follow on 
from repairs to Walker 
Drive and Spurr Court. 

34 signatures 

Presented by 
Cllr Waller at 
Full Council 
on 21 March 
2024 

 

Additional 
signatures 
provided by 
Cllr Waller 
19/4/24 

Steve Wragg Executive 
Member 
Economy & 
Transport 

21/03/24 Will be considered 

at a future 

Executive Member 

for Economy and 

Transport Decision 

Session 

Petition Acknowledged   Open 

P
age 100



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

215. Support Outdoor 
Dining in York 

We the undersigned 
call on the City of York 
Council to urgently 
review how pavement 
cafes can operate in 
York city centre 
considering the recent 
changes to city centre 
access. Many 
businesses are now 
unable to offer an 
outdoor dining option 
which will and is 
having significant 
financial 
consequences for 
local traders and small 
businesses.  

232 signatures 

Presented by 
Cllr Mason at 
Full Council 
on 21 March 
2024 

Helene Vergereau Executive 
Member 
Economy & 
Transport 

21.03.24 Report to EMDS 

and Licensing 

Committee 

(including new 

legislation and 

guidance update) – 

Date TBC 

Acknowledged on 26.03.24 

 

Open 

216.  Improving 
Cycling Facilities on 
Wentworth Road – We 
the undersigned, 
would welcome the 
opportunity to trial a 
bicycle storage hanger 
on Wentworth Road. 

12 signatures 

Petition email 
to Cllr. 
Kilbane 
11.3.24 from 
than Lead 
Petitioner. 

Greg Morgan Executive 
Member for 
Economy & 
Transport 

11.03.24 To be considered in 

a future report to 

the Executive 

Member for 

Economy and 

Transport 

Petition acknowledged, Open 

P
age 101



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

217. Petition the 
Council to support 
calls for an immediate 
and sustainable 
ceasefire in Gaza and 
Israel.  

We, the undersigned 
concerned residents of 
York, are reaching out 
to our elected 
councillors in 
alignment with major 
international cities, 
such as Chicago, as 
well as UK cities, and 
in keeping with York's 
status as the first 
Human Rights City in 
the UK 

1352 signatures 

Presented by 
Cllr Myers at 
Full Council 
on 21 March 
2024 

Bryn Roberts Executive 
Leader 

21/03/24  Petition acknowledged. This 

will be reported to the next 

available Corporate Services, 

Climate Change, and Scrutiny 

Management Committee, with 

a recommendation that it be 

escalated to the Leader of the 

Council for consideration. 

 

218. Reopen The 
Groves Roads 

We the undersigned 
petition the council to 
reopen the closed 
roads. 

19 signatures 

ePetition Helene Vergereau Executive 
Member for 
Economy & 
Transport 

04/04/24 To be considered at 

a future decision 

session of the 

Executive member 

for Economy and 

Transport 

Petition acknowledged on 

15.04.24 

Open 

P
age 102



   

Petition Details  
No. of Signatures 

Petition 
type 

Officer 
Responsible 

Decision 
Maker 

Date of 

Receipt 

Action Proposed Action Taken Status 

Open/Closed 

219. Disapproval of the 
proposed alterations to 
the number 16/24 bus 
routes and timings 

We the passengers 
who use the number 16 
bus are against the 
proposals to extend the 
service/combined with 
Transdev, to a longer 
run, probably making it 
more difficult to achieve 
within the one hour 
suggested. 

139 signatures 

Petition hand 
delivered to 
West Offices  

Sam Fryers/Lara 
Thornton 

Executive 
Member for 
Economy & 
Transport 

03.04.24  Acknowledged by the 

Executive Member for 

Economy and Transport on 4 

April 2024 as a response to 

the bus network review 

consultation. 

 

Executive Member 

subsequently responded: 

Officers have assured me that 

there won’t be any changes to 

the existing route 16 until the 

end of August. We’ll be sure to 

work with the operators to 

ensure that all revised routes 

and timetables are realistic 

and achievable. 

Closed 

220.  Petition for 
Residents Parking 
Zone in Milton Street. 

We, the undersigned, 
call upon City of York 
Council to introduce a 
Residents Parking 
Zone in Milton Street 
and surrounding 
streets. 

12 signatures 

Petition email 
from Cllr 
Tony Clarke 
to Highway 
Regulation 10 
April 2024. 

Darren Hobson Executive 
Member for 
Economy & 
Transport 

10.04.24 Report to be 

considered at a 

future session of the 

Executive Member 

for Economy and 

Transport 

Petition acknowledged. Open 

 

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Work Plan 

Meeting 
Date 

Committee Agenda Item 

13/05/24 CSMC  Ten Year Strategies  

 Council Motions 

 Petitions Schedule 

 Work Planning 

15/05/24 HHASC  Adult Social Care Strategy 

 Autism and Neurodivergence Strategy, 
ICB report 

21/05/24 EPAT  TBC 

04/06/24 CCC  TBC 

10/06/24 CSMC  York pipeline of proposals for the 
combined authority 

 

The Forward Plan can be found here. 

Committees 

CSMC  
 
EPAT  
 
HHASC  
 
CCC 

Corporate Services, Climate Change and Scrutiny 
Management Committee  
Economy, Place, Access and Transport Scrutiny 
Committee  
Health, Housing and Adult Social Care Scrutiny 
Committee  
Children, Culture and Communities Scrutiny Committee 

      

Page 105 Agenda Item 7

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=788&RP=733


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 The Ten-Year Strategies: a stock take
	Annex A The Strategy and Policy Framework
	Annex B Climate 10 year Plan Scorecard at March 2024 - Limited 23-24 Data
	Annex C Economy 10 year Plan Scorecard at March 2024 - Limited 23-24 Data
	Annex D Health and Wellbeing 10 year Plan Scorecard at March 2024 - No 23-24 Data

	5 Monitoring and Tracking of Approved Council Motions
	Annex A 010524 V2 Council Motions

	6 Schedule of Petitions
	Annex A_Appendix 2- Petitions Scheme
	Annex B 300424 NEW Petitions Schedule May 2023 ongoing

	7 Work Plan



